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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some statements contained in this report are falhaking with respect to our operations, reseantth development activities and
financial condition. Statements that are forwarokiag in nature should be read with caution becalusg involve risks and uncertainties,
which are included, for example, in specific andeyal discussions about:

. our strategy

. product development and commercialization of oodprts;

. clinical trials;

. revenues from existing and new collaboratic

. our research and development and other expe

. sufficiency of our cash resource

. our operational and legal risks; a

. our plans, objectives, expectations and intentaorsany other statements that are not historicas |

Various terms and expressions similar to themtened to identify these cautionary statementes&tierms include: “anticipates,”
“believes,” “continues,” “could,” “estimates,” “exgts,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “seeks,” “shouldind “will.” Actual results may differ
materially from those expressed or implied in thstsgéements. Factors that could cause these diffesanclude, but are not limited to, those
discussed under “Risk Factors” and “Management&ssion and Analysis of Financial Condition andus of Operations.” Sangamo
undertakes no obligation to publicly release amwysiens to forward-looking statements to reflectets or circumstances arising after the date

of this report. Readers are cautioned not to plexckie reliance on the forward-looking statementsclvspeak only as of the date of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART I

ltem 1. Business
Overview

We are a leader in the research, development ancheecialization of zinc finger DNA-binding proteiBFPs), a naturally occurring
class of proteins, and have used our knowledge=apertise to develop a proprietary technology platf ZFPs can be engineered (see Fig. 1)
to make ZFP transcription factors, or ZFP TE9roteins that can be used to turn genes on papff ZFP nucleases, ZFR§, proteins that
enable us to modify DNA sequences in a variety ajsv As ZFPs act at the DNA level, they have bipaténtial applications in several areas
including human therapeutics, plant agricultursesrch reagents and cell-line engineering.

The main focus for our company is the developménbeel human therapeutics and we are buildingpelpie of ZFP Therapeutics.
Our lead ZFP Therapeutic, SB-509, a plasmid fortmuteof a ZFP TF activator of the vascular enda#igrowth factor-A (VEGF-A) gene, i
in three Phase 2 clinical trials for the treatmafdiabetic neuropathy (DN). We have presented fitata a Phase 1 study of SB-509
demonstrating that it was well tolerated in sulgeeith DN. In addition, over a six month periodeaifa single administration of SB-509, we
observed a statistically significant improvementjirantitative sensory testing (QST) and clinicafiievant trends toward improvement in ne
conduction velocity (NCV) in subjects with mild tooderate diabetic neuropathy. We expect to hawéelidata from our Phase 2 trials in the
second half of 2008. In 2008, we also expect tiait@ a fourth Phase 2 clinical trial of SB-50%t@luate its safety and clinical effects in
subjects with Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis (ALS)L.@ou Gehrig's Disease. In addition, we have congulea Phase 1 clinical trial and have an
ongoing Phase 1 clinical study both designed tduev@ the safety and preliminary efficacy of thisgrietary Sangamo ZFP Therapeutic for
treatment of peripheral artery disease (PAD).

We expect to file Investigational New Drug Applicats (INDs) to initiate the first Phase 1 clinitaéls of our ZFN Therapeutics
programs in HIV and in glioblastoma multiforme i6(B.

We have preclinical development programs of ZFPrdeutics in spinal cord injury, stroke, traumétiain injury, neuropathic pain, and
Parkinson'’s disease. In January 2007, we annoumgednt of $950,000 from The Michael J. Fox Fouiodafor Parkinson’s Research
(“MJIFF”) to partially fund this program. We haveditibnal research-stage programs in X-linked seeerabined immunodeficiency (Kaked
SCID), hemophilia and hemoglobinopathies.

We believe the potential commercial applicationBPs are broad-based and we have capitalized rofiFs platform by facilitating the
sale or licensing of ZFP TFs or ZFNs to companieskimg in fields outside of human therapeutics.

. In October 2005, we announced a Research Licerts€ammercial Option Agreement with Dow AgroScienddsC (DAS), a
wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Dow Chemicalrforation. Under the agreement, Sangamo is proyibiAS with access to
Sangamo’s ZFP technology and the exclusive righis®it to modify the genomes or alter the nucheid or protein expression of
plant cells, plants, or plant cell cultures. We daetained rights to use plants or plant-derivedipcts to deliver ZFP TFs or ZFNs
into human or animals for diagnostic, therapeuwtiqorophylactic purposes. DAS and Sangamo havewnuaadl the successful
achievement of multiple milestones in this collaimn signaling the scientific success of the tetbgy in important commercial
crops. DAS has an option for a commercial licemselfe technology that expires on September 3082

. In addition, in July 2007 we established an all@andth Sigmi-Aldrich Corporation “Sigmé”) to develop and commercialize hi
value laboratory research reagents based upon ®a’'s ZFP technology

. We also have research and license agreementsifeitiences companies including Pfizer It“ Pfizer”), Novo Nordisk Inc.
Novartis A/G, Amgen Inc. and Kirin Brewery Compayresearch and license agreement with Medarexahttmost recently
research and license agreement with Genentech(‘®enentech”). Under these agreements, we aregingvaccess to Sangamao’s
proprietary ZFP technology to generate cell linétd wovel characteristics for protein pharmaceutcaduction.

4
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We have a substantial intellectual property positiothe design, selection, composition, and usengineered ZFPs to support all of
these commercial activities. As of February 1, 2008 either own outright or have exclusively licedshe commercial rights to approximately
191 patents issued in the United States and for@gjonal jurisdictions, and we have 212 patentieafions owned and licensed pending
worldwide. We continue to license and file new paggplications that strengthen our core and accggmtent portfolio. We believe that our
proprietary position will protect our ability togearch, develop, and commercialize products anicesrbased on ZFP technology across our
chosen applications.

DNA, Genes, and Transcription Factors

DNA is present in all cells except mature red blgels, and encodes the inherited characterisfiedl bving organisms. A cell's DNA is
organized in chromosomes as thousands of individinigés called genes. Genes encode proteins, wihichssembled through the process of
transcription—whereby DNA is transcribed into riliofeic acid (RNA)—and, subsequently, translation—eveoy RNA is translated into
protein. DNA, RNA, and proteins comprise many @ targets for pharmaceutical drug discovery anthfieutic intervention at the molecular
level.

The human body is composed of specialized cellsplidorm different functions and are thus orgadizgo tissues and organs. All
somatic cells in an individual's body contain tlaen® set of genes. However, only a fraction of tlyesees are turned on, or expressed, in an
individual human cell at any given time. Genesraglated, i.e. turned on or turned off, in resgottsa wide variety of stimuli and
developmental signals. Distinct sets of genes gpeessed in different cell types. It is this paitef gene expression that determines the
structure, biological function, and health of alls, tissues, and organisms. The aberrant expres$icertain genes can lead to disease.

Transcription factors are proteins that bind to Dai#d regulate gene expression. A transcriptiorofaetcognizes and binds to a specific
DNA sequence within or near a particular gene angses expression of that gene to be “turned onivéded) or “turned off” (repressed). In
higher organisms, transcription factors typicallynprise two principal domains: the first is a DN#&ding domain, which recognizes a target
DNA sequence and thereby directs the transcrigtiotor to the proper chromosomal location; the sdde a functional domain that causes the
target gene to be activated or repressed (seed-igur

Functional
Recognition Domain Domain
/ N/ !
Zinc Finger DNA » Activation
Binding Protein * Repression
(ZFP) » Modification

 Correction
* Disruption
= Addition
Figure 1
The Two Domain Structure of a ZFP Therapeutic
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Engineered Zinc Finger Protein Transcription Factors (ZFP TFs) for Gene Regulation and Engineered ZFRucleases (ZFNs) for Gene
Modification

Consistent with the two-domain structure of natdigP TFs, we take a modular approach to the deditime proteins that we engineer.
The ZFP portion, the DNA-recognition domain, isibglly composed of three or more zinc fingers. Eaclividual finger recognizes and binds
to a three base pair sequence of DNA and multipgefs can be linked together to recognize longetches of DNA, thereby improving
specificity. By modifying the amino acids of a ZEt directly interact with DNA, we can engineevabZFPs capable of recognizing pre-
selected DNA sequences within, or near, virtuatly gene.

We use the engineered ZFP DNA-binding domain lintced functional domain. The ZFP DNA-binding dombings the functional
domain into the proximity of the gene of inter@tius Sangamo’s scientists can create a ZFP TF vidicdpable of controlling or regulating a
target gene in the desired manner. For instan@ghabg an activation domain to a ZFP will causarget gene to be “turned orAlternatively,
a repression domain causes the gene to be “tufié®ar lead ZFP Therapeutic SB-509 is designetlto a gene on. SB-509 is a ZFP TF
activator of thevEGF-Agene. VEGFA has been shown to have angiogenic propertiegpigromote the growth of blood vessels, and teele
protective and regenerative effect on nerve tisgdeare testing this ZFP TF in Phase 2 clinicaldrin subjects with DN and in Phase 1
clinical trials in PAD. We have plans to initiaté*aase 2 trial in ALS, and we have preclinical paogs in stroke, spinal cord injury and
traumatic brain injury. We are also developing ZF that turn gene expression off. We have progiamsuropathic pain focused on the
repression of pain receptors, Trk-A and PN3. Th&ge TFs are in preclinical testing.

Our engineered ZFPs can also be attached to theagle domain of a restriction endonuclease, anneazljat cuts DNA, creating a zinc
finger nuclease or ZFN. The ZFN is able to recogiiiz intended gene target through its engineefgl ENA-binding domain (Figure 1).
When a pair of ZFNs is bound to the DNA in the eotrorientation and spacing, the DNA sequencetibetween the ZFP binding sites. DNA-
binding by both ZFNs is necessary for cleavages Béak in the DNA triggers a natural process ofADpair in the cell. The repair process
can be harnessed to achieve one of several outdhiatemay be therapeutically useful. If cells darepdy treated with ZFNs alone the repair
process frequently results in joining togetherhaf two ends of the broken DNA and the consequastdda small amount of genetic material
that results in disruption of the original DNA seqge. This can result in the generation of a shed®r non-functional protein, i.e. gene
disruption. We believe that ZFN-mediated gene mcatifon may be used to disrupt a gene that is iraain disease pathology such as
disruption of the CCR5 gene to treat HIV infectmmthe disruption of the glucocorticoid receptongéo make engineered “killer” T-cells
resistant to glucocorticoids as in our glioblastgmagram. In contrast, if cells are treated withN&Fn the presence of an additional “donor”
DNA sequence that encodes the correct gene sequaeramell can use the donor as a template to ciotire cell’s gene as it repairs the break
resulting in ZFN-mediated gene correction. ZFN-raéell gene correction enables a corrected genedrgressed in its natural chromosomal
context and may provide a novel approach for tleeipe repair of DNA sequence mutations respon$iblsmonogenic diseases such as sickle
cell anemia and X-linked severe combined immunaiksicy (X-linked SCID). In addition, by making tdenor sequence a gene-sized
segment of DNA, a new copy of a gene can also Hedhthto the genome at a specific location. Thétald place a gene-sized segment of
DNA specifically into a pre-determined locationtie genome eliminates the insertional mutagenesiserns associated with traditional gene
replacement approaches.

To date, we have designed, engineered, and asss®eral thousand ZFPs and have tested manyss fhveteins for their affinity, or
tightness of binding to their DNA target as wellthsir specificity, or preference for their inteddeNA target. We have developed methods
the design, selection, and assembly of ZFPs capéditlieding to a wide spectrum of DNA sequences genes. We have linked ZFPs to
numerous functional domains to create gene-spedifie TFs and have demonstrated the ability of td€$& TFs to regulate hundreds of genes
in dozens of different cell types and directly ihale organisms, including mice, rats, rabbits, pigst flies, worms, zebra fish and yeast, and
in plant species including canola and maize. Sawogssientists
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and collaborators have published data in peerwedescientific journals on the transcriptional ftion of ZFP TFs, successful gene
modification using ZFNs and the resulting changethe behavior of the target cell, tissue, or oigran We have also administered plasmid
encoding our VEGF-A activating transcription factothumans as part of our clinical trials. We arerently evaluating their efficacy in man.

ZFP Therapeutics Provide the Opportunity to Developa New Class of Human Therapeutics

With our ability to deliver gene-specific ZFP Tks the activation or repression of genes and ZENXshie correction, disruption or
addition of target genes and DNA sequences, w&atsed on developing a new class of highly diffiéeted human therapeutics and believe
that as more genes are validated as high-valuepketic targets, the clinical breadth and scopmioZFP Therapeutic applications may be
substantial.

We believe that ZFP Therapeutics provide a uniquepaoprietary approach to drug design and may bawgetitive advantages over
small-molecule drugs, protein pharmaceuticals aNdfRased approaches.

For example, ZFP Therapeutics can:

. Potentially be used to treat a broad range of dises&s.ZFP Therapeutics act at the DNA level to regulatmodify gene
expression. We believe that we can generate ZFRtmnize virtually any gene target allowing direodulation of the gene and
enabling a potentially broad applicabili

. Target “non-druggable” targets. ZFP TFs and ZFNs act through a mechanism thatiggiearamong biological drugs: dire
regulation or modification of the disease-relatetherapeutic gene as opposed to the RNA or prééeget encoded by that gene.
Following the genomics revolution of the 1990s, skquencing and publication of the human genontettenindustrialization of
genomics-based drug discovery, pharmaceutical artddhnology companies have validated and chatiaetemany new drug
targets. Many of these targets have a clear rafiisiase processes but cannot be bound or modéteitéebrapeutic purposes by
small molecules. Alternative therapeutic approachayg be required to modulate the biological agtiveit these so-called “non-
druggable” targets. This may create a significéinical and commercial opportunity for the therafieuegulation or modification
of disease-associated genes using engineered Z&BriAFNs. Thus, a target which may be intractédokeeatment using a small
molecule or monoclonal antibody can be turned emed off or modified at the DNA level using ZFRHheology.

. Provide novel activities such as activation of gerexpression and gene modification to address drugtgets.Engineered ZFI
TFs enable not just the repression of a therapalyticelevant gene but its activation, and ZFNskdaahe disruption, correction or
targeted addition of a gene sequence. This givetetthnology a degree of flexibility not seen ihestdrug platforms. Activation of
gene expression and direct modification of genesat functions that can be achieved using antesBiNA, or siRNA, which act
by interfering with the expression of cellular RN#, conventional small molecules, antibodies, deoprotein pharmaceuticals t
primarily act to"block” or antagonize the action of a prote

. Provide high specificity and selectivity for targes. ZFP Therapeutics can be designed to act with tpgliicity and we have
published such dataRroc. Natl. Acad. Sci (2003) vol:100, p11997-12002 addition, there are generally only two tasgeér cell
for a ZFP Therapeutic which means that ZFP TFsZiidis need to be available in the cell in very lammeoentrations. In contrast,
drugs that act on protein and RNA targets thahatarally present in higher cellular concentratioeed to be administered in
higher concentrations. Many small molecule and RN&ed approaches either affect multiple targetodstrating so-called “off-
target effect” or are toxic in the concentrations required toHszdpeutically effective

. Be used transiently to obtain a permanent therapeit effect. Permanent gene disruption, correction or additézjuires only
brief cellular expression of ZFN
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THERAPEUTIC PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
ZFP Therapeutic Product Development Programs
SB-509—An Activator of VEGF-A Gene Expression

Our lead therapeutic development programs are kesenhd the development of a ZFP TF that has begimeered to activate a patient’s
own vascular endothelial growth factor-AEGF-A) gene. VEGF-A has been demonstrated to have mgflogenic and direct
neuroproliferative, neuroregenerative and neur@atote properties. ThRéEGF-Agene encodes multiple forms (isoforms) of the VE&F-
protein which exhibit slightly different propertiasd bind to different VEGF-A receptors. It is leskd that all of these isoforms are required to
be present in specific ratios to achieve a fulldgical effect. We believe that this differentia®3sngamo’s approach. We are developing
formulations of this VEGF-activating ZFP TF, alsalled (SB-509 and EW-A401) for the following conditions: diabetic neurtipg periphera
artery disease and ALS (see Table 1) and are dirgjuthe ZFP Therapeutic in several ongoing clihidals. We are also evaluating the VEGF
ZFP TF in preclinical animal studies in spinal coriry, traumatic brain injury and stroke.

Product Stage of
Candidate Targeted Indication Development Protocol Milestones
SB-509 Diabetic Neuropathy: mild to moderate Phase 1 SB-509-401 Enroliment and treatment complete. Full data
set to be published or presented in 1H 2
Diabetic Neuropathy: mild to modere Phase : SB-50¢-601  Subject enrollment complete. Data in 2H 2!
Diabetic Neuropathy: Phase 2 SB-509-701 Expect to complete enrollment and have da
moderate to seve 2008

Stem cell mobilization: in subjects with mild Phase 2 SB-509-703 Expect to complete enroliment in 2008
to moderate DI

Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis (AL Phase : Expect to initiate study in 20C
*EW-A-401 Peripheral Artery Disease: Critical lin Phase : 0412-682 Completec

ischemia

Peripheral Artery Disease: Intermittent Phase 1 0310-611 Ongoing

claudicatior

* The EW-A-401 formulation contains the same ZFP TF a-509

Table 1: Summary of current clinical programs eatihg Sangamo’s ZFP TF activator of VEGF-A

Diabetic Neuropathy (DN
Market Opportunity

Diabetic peripheral sensory and motor neuropatlonésof the most frequent complications of diaheSggnptoms include numbness,
tingling sensations and pain particularly in thest@r feet which may evolve into loss of sensadioth motor function as nerve damage
progresses. Ulcers and sores may appear on nuab @réhe foot or leg because pressure or injupsgmnoticed. Despite adequate treatment,
these areas of trauma frequently become infectddhas infection may spread to the bone, necegsitaimputation of the leg or foot. The rate
of amputation for people with diabetes is ten tirhigher than that for non-diabetics and more thz# &f non-traumatic lower-limb
amputations in the United States occur among paeiptediabetes. In 2002, that translated to appnately 82,000 non-traumatic lower limb
amputations. The American Diabetes Association (ABgtimates that in 2005 there were approximat@l@ tillion people with diabetes in
the United States and that of those about 60% % fi@ve mild to severe forms of neuropathy. Accagdmthe Centers for Disease Control
(CDC), diabetes is becoming more common in theddh&tates. From 1980 through 2002, the number aérigains with diabetes more than
doubled.
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Current Treatments

Apart from rigorous control of blood glucose, thdyotherapies approved by the FDA for the treatnoéi@N are analgesics and
antidepressants such as Lyrfogregabalin) and Cymbaltaduloxetine hydrochloride) that address the symgtoifrpain but do not retard or
reverse the progression of the disease.

Sangamo’s Therapeutic Approach

Sangamo is developing SB-509, an injectable fortioriaof plasmid DNA that encodes a ZFP TF, desigoagp-regulate the patient’s
own VEGF-A gene in an effort to address the undegiyerve damage caused by DN. Human clinical studave demonstrated that VEGF
expression is reduced in diabetic patients withroathy and that the more severe the symptomsréstey the reduction in VEGF-A
expression Diabetes Care (2008) Vol: 31 p140-1)18Ne have completed preclinical studies of VE&EBetivation using our ZFP Therapeu
SB-509, in animal models of DN and demonstratetdimgle and repeat intramuscular injections of B-in rats with diabetes resulted in
protection of nerve function in the treated limmasasured by sensory and motor nerve conductiatitiels. In January 2005, we filed an It
with the FDA for SB-509 for the treatment of milwimoderate diabetic neuropathy. We completed eneuit and treatment of a Phase 1a,
single blind, dose-escalation trial to measurddberatory and clinical safety of SB-509 in humabjects and extended this study to a larger
Phase 1b study. Data from our Phase 1 trial demadgadtthat a single treatment of SB-509 was wédlréded and that no drug-related severe
adverse events (SAEs) were observed. Moreover fiaatathe Phase 1b clinical trial presented atAhreerican Diabetes Association Meeting
in June 2007 and the Society for Neuroscience Mgeati November 2007 demonstrate improvements irsarea of nerve health. We obser
a statistically significant improvement in quartiita sensory testing and clinically relevant tretmsard improvement in nerve conduction
velocity measurements in subjects with mild to mratkediabetic neuropathy over a six month perioelr & single administration of SB-509.
We initiated a double-blind, placebo-controlleheat-dosing multi-center Phase 2 clinical triab&-509 (SB-509-601) in November 2006
having entered into an agreement with Juvenile &edResearch Foundation International (JDRF) iolégs 2006 to provide up to
$3.0 million in funding to support this trial. Wempleted enrollment of subjects into this triaDacember 2007 and expect to have data from
the trial in the second half of 2008. In April 200V initiated a second repeat-dosing placebo-otbett Phase 2 clinical study (SB-509-701) to
evaluate SB-509 in subjects with moderate to seD&reWe expect to have data from this single btimal in 2008.

In preclinical and clinical studies we have obsdraemobilization of so-called “Aldehyde dehydrogem&ALDH)-bright cells” into the
bloodstream after treatment with SB-509. ALDH-btigklls can be identified by their ability to baisted with a substrate of aldehyde
dehydrogenase, an enzyme that is highly expressstéiin cells. ALDH-bright cell populations of humaone marrow have been shown to be
highly enriched in cell types thought to mediasstie repair, including endothelial, mesenchymalraleand hematopoietic progenitor cells.
Stem cells are of interest as potential therapegénts as they can be induced to become cellsavsiiecial function in the body such as ne
and blood vessels and can potentially migrate fitmenblood circulation into areas of injury or deggation to participate in the body’s repair
response. This observation may also serve as aplsadynamic surrogate biomarker enabling a physiciaasily monitor progress of our
therapy for DN after SB-509 administration. In Jary2008, we announced that we had initiated desiblind, placebo-controlled, Phase 2
clinical trial (SB-509-703) in subjects with mild moderate DN designed to evaluate the pharmaditsnef stem cell mobilization into the
bloodstream after treatment with varying dosesB¥589 as well as the clinical safety and clinicéets of SB-509 administration. We expect
to complete enrollment of this trial in 2008 and/daata in 2009.

Peripheral Artery Disease (PAL
Market Opportunity

PAD is the result of inadequate arterial blood flmthe lower extremities. It is seen as a specwbidisease, beginning with
asymptomatic reduction in blood flow to the ledldwed by the development of intermittent claudicat(IC), which limits walking distance,
and the subsequent stage, marked by foot paireialthkence of exercise, is known as resting panthé&uprogression leads to tissue damage
and severely
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impaired mobility, a stage known as critical linsgghiemia (CLI). CLI leads to amputation for 200,@@®ple per year in the Untied States. F
affects 8-12 million people in the United StateevRlence increases with age, and by age 70, sféggroximately 20 percent of the
population. Eighty percent of these patients haterinittent claudication and do not progress ttinggain or critical limb ischemia.

Current Treatments

Treatment for PAD focuses on reducing symptomspaedenting further progression of the disease eRttiwith IC are generally
advised to increase exercise, modify their dietamdprescribed blood pressure and cholesterolrlogvérugs. Two drugs, Pentoxifylline, a
hemorheologic agent, and Cliostazol, a phosphati@se 111 inhibitor, have been approved by the FDrintermittent claudication.
Interventional procedures may also be used in gmatients with IC including thrombolysis (dissolvintpt with medication infused into the |
artery), thrombectomy (extraction of a clot frone fleg artery using a balloon catheter), angioplasting a balloon catheter to expand the
vessel), stenting (using a catheter to place alroeilanside the artery, so as to expand it), antjery (using a segment of vein, to surgically
bypass the obstruction). There are no drugs clyrapproved for the treatment of CLI.

Sangamo’s Therapeutic Approach

Our ZFP TF activator of VEGF has been evaluatgukitipheral artery disease for therapeutic angiogjener the growth of new blood
vessels. The initial development of a formulatigi\(-A-401) of the plasmid encoding this ZFP TF wasded and managed by Edwards
Lifesciences LLC (“Edwards”). In December 2006, aggjuired this clinical-stage ZFP TF therapeutici@genesis program from Edwards.
This included a Phase 1 clinical trial (0310-61fLEW-A-401 to treat intermittent claudication (IC) inigatin August 2004 which is ongoing
the National Heart Lung and Blood Institute (NHLREthe National Institutes of Health (NIH) andt@Be 1 human clinical trial for CLI
(0412-682) that was initiated in June 2005 at Dukeversity Medical Center. Accrual and treatmensobjects on this latter trial is complete.

Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis (ALS
Market Opportunity

ALS, commonly referred to as “Lou Gehrig’s diseagea progressive neurodegenerative disease tfeatsnerve cells in the brain and
the spinal cord and is generally fatal. The progjkesdegeneration of the motor neurons in ALS ésgtimary reason that the disease is fatal.
When the motor neurons die, the ability of the btaiinitiate and control muscle movement is |d&tiscle weakness is a hallmark initial sign
in ALS, occurring in approximately 60% of patientfie hands and feet may be affected first, caudiffigulty in lifting, walking or using the
hands. As the weakening and paralysis continupreasl to the muscles of the trunk, the diseasetealyaffects speech, swallowing, chew
and breathing. When the breathing muscles becofeetedl, ultimately, patients need permanent ventiyasupport in order to survive. More
than 5,600 Americans are diagnosed with ALS eael. Yipproximately 35,000 people at any given timelaving with ALS in the United
States.

Current Treatments

There are no drugs available to cure ALS. The FR& dpproved a single medication, RilutgRiluzole) which modestly increases
lifespan in ALS patients.

Sangamo’s Therapeutic Approach

There are both animal and clinical data that sugipes a defect or deficiency in VEGF expressiaaypla role in ALS. We plan to
evaluate whether a regional muscle or systemicef®SB-509 delivery will result in a therapeugifect in ALS. We expect to initiate a Phase
2 clinical trial to address this indication in 2008

Pre-clinical Stage Programs

In addition to our ongoing Phase 2 clinical trisl$ON and stem cell mobilization, Phase 1 clinital in PAD, and our submission to
initiate a Phase 2 trial in ALS we currently hawe tpre-IND programs as well as
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multiple preclinical-stage programs (i.e., lead ZFPmolecules in animal efficacy studies). We expedile INDs for our ZFP Therapeutics
for HIV/AIDS and glioblastoma in 2008.

Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) and Acquired Immnodeficiency Syndrome (AIDS

According to UNAIDS/WHO, in 2006 over 4.3 milliorepple were newly infected with HIV, and there aogvrover 40 million people
world-wide living with HIV and AIDS. An estimated 2 million people died of AIDS in the same yeareT®DC estimates that, in the United
States alone, there were one million people livirign HIV/AIDS, approximately 46,000 new infectioasd 17,000 deaths in 2005.

HIV infection results in the death of immune systesiis and thus leads to AIDS, a condition in whicé body’s immune system is
depleted to such a degree that the patient is enabiight off common infections. Ultimately, thegatients succumb to opportunistic infections
or cancers. CCR5 is a co-receptor for HIV entrg ifitcells and, if CCRS5 is not expressed on theifese, HIV is less efficient at infecting
these cells. A population of individuals that isyiune to HIV infection, despite multiple exposurestte virus, has been identified and
extensively studied. The majority of these indidtiuhave a natural mutation, CCR5delta32, thattesuthe expression of a shortened, or
truncated, and non-functional CCR5 protein. Thigatian appears to have no observable deleteridastefVe are using our ZFN-mediated
gene disruption technology to disrupt the CCR5 dareells of a patient's immune system to makeeteedls permanently resistant to HIV
infection. The aim is to provide a population oMdlesistant cells that can fight HIV and opportuicisnfections. In collaboration with
scientists at the University of Pennsylvania wepnesuingin-vivo approaches in Eells and hematopoietic stem cells. We expectacafi INC
for a Phase 1 trial of our CCR5 ZFN Therapeuti2008.

Glioblastoma Multiforme

Gliomas are the most common type of primary braimcers; 20,000 cases are diagnosed and 14,000egi&lated deaths occur annually
in the United States. Glioblastoma multiforme (Glfig most common type of glioma, is rapidly progres and nearly universally lethal.
Currently, malignant glioma is managed through sgrgnd radiation which often exacerbates the dyrsavere symptoms caused by the
location of the tumor. With modern surgical andiotfterapeutic techniques the mean duration of sahfias increased to 82 weeks, although
5-year survival rates have only increased from &% Resections of 90% of bulky tumors are usuaigmpted provided that vital functional
anatomy is spared. Chemotherapy, resection andti@diprovide only marginal survival advantage &tignts. Approximately 80% of recurrt
tumors arise from remnants of the original incortgdieresected tumor. The median survival of requrgdioblastoma multiforme patients
treated with a second resection is 36 weeks.

In collaboration with clinicians at City of HopeGOH”) we are developing a ZFP Therapeutic that uses BNrt&chnology to disrupt tt
expression of the gene encoding the glucocorticeeeéptor. Our collaborators have developed an eegad protein known as an IL-13
“zetakine” that, when expressed in cytotoxic ofléd’ T-cells, enables them to seek out and desgtmblastoma cells in the brain. In an
investigator-sponsored IND patients have beenddeaith zetakine-modified T-cells which have shasignificant anti-tumor activity. In the
current clinical protocol, Tells are removed from a patient with GM and medifio express the zetakine. These modified cedlsnfinsed int
the brain following surgery for the targeted eliation of residual tumor cells. Frequently, howeweglucocorticoid such as Decadfomust
be administered to patients post-surgery to cotiraih swelling. Glucocorticoids inactivate or Kitle therapeutic T-cells through a protein
known as the glucocorticoid receptor (GR). Cellthaviit a functional GR are drug-resistant and aeecflore available to destroy tumor cells.
Our goal is to generate zetakine positive, GR-riegdt-cells thus enabling the full treatment effecbccur even in the presence of Decadron.
In December 2006, we entered into a broad, exaugiense agreement with the COH for use of thakie¢ with our technology. Sangamo
retains commercialization rights and COH receivexess-based milestone and downstream paymentanii¢gate filing an IND for a Phase
1 clinical trial of this therapeutic in 2008.
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Neuropathic Pain (Cancer Pain

Neuropathic pain comprises a set of chronic pasordiers that cannot be connected to a physicah&aas is the case with acute pain.
There are several million patients with neuropagiam in the United States including latxge cancer patients. Studies have shown thato®
patients with advanced cancer experience sevene guadl that pain occurs in 30% of all cancer patieegardless of the stage of the disease.
Pain usually increases in intensity as cancer pssgrs. The most common cancer pain is from turhatsietastasize to the bone. As many as
60-80% of cancer patients with bone metastasisreqpee severe pain. The second most common caageispcaused by tumors infiltrating
nerves. Tumors near neural structures may causadbkesevere pain. The few drugs currently beirgglie treat pain in these patients show
marginal efficacy and can have very significaneséffects. Chronic pain is a major and undersemarket opportunity and is now an area of
intense focus by pharmaceutical researchers owitiget discovery of several new pain-related patlswamd drug targets. Recent studies have
shown that in chronic pain, certain proteins inveerell membranes are up-regulated or over-expde§aer scientists have identified ZFP TF
candidates that repress the expression of twoesktipain targets, Trk-A and PN3, in cell-based nsodek-A and PN3 fall into the class of
“non-druggable” targets. We have incorporated th#9e TFs into gene transfer vectors and have detraded a statistically significant
reduction of pain in an animal model of bone camaén after treatment with Sangamo’s ZFP TF remesETrk-A. These data were presented
at the Society for Neuroscience meeting in Noven2€7. Further animal studies are ongoing.

Nerve Regeneratic—Spinal Cord Injury (SCI) and Traumatic Brain Injuy (TBI)

Nerves are fragile and can be damaged by disessssype, stretching, or cutting. While recent adearin emergency care and
rehabilitation allow many patients suffering frormerve injury or neurodegenerative disease to gefar longer periods and live with their
condition, there are currently no therapeutic aitifor restoring nerve function. The spectrum oécli nerve injuries ranges from “pinched”
nerves, e.g. sciatica, to outright spinal cord ssvee. Spinal Cord Injury (SCI) encompasses dartate spinal cord that results in a loss of
function such as mobility or feeling. The Natioginal Cord Injury Statistical Center (NSCISC) esties that there are approximately 11,000
new cases each year primarily in young adults. siiieal cord does not have to be severed in ordex foss of function to occur. In fact, in
most people with SCI, the spinal cord is intact, the damage to it results in loss of function.device from preclinical and clinical studies
using VEGF-A suggests that the targeted up-reguiaif VEGF-A may be a viable approach to the tremthof degenerative nerve disease,
crush injuries, SCI and traumatic brain injurycbilaboration with several academic labs, we asuating our ZFP TF activator of ttMEGF-
A gene in pre-clinical animal efficacy models of S®e have presented data that demonstrates aistdlssignificant effect on both recovery
of hind-limb function and spinal cord tissue presgion following treatment at the time of injurytviour ZFP TF activator of VEGF-A in a
severe model of SCI. Further studies in SCI to $tigate dosing and timing of dose as well as anghalies in traumatic brain injury are
ongoing.

Parkinsor’s Disease (PD)

Parkinson’s disease is a chronic, progressive digsaf the central nervous system and results fl@ross of cells in a section of the
brain called the substantia nigra. These cellsywedlopamine, a chemical messenger responsiblefamitting signals within the brain. Loss
of dopamine causes critical nerve cells in therhrai neurons, to fire out of control, leaving pats unable to direct or control their movement
in a normal manner. The symptoms of Parkinson’s mealyde tremors, difficulty maintaining balancedagait; rigidity or stiffness of the limbs
and trunk; and general slowness of movement (aleccbradykinesia). Patients may also eventualehdifficulty walking, talking, or
completing other simple tasks. Symptoms often apgesdually yet with increasing severity and thegsession of the disease may vary wic
from patient to patient. There is no cure for Paskn’s disease. Drugs have been developed thdtatpmpatients manage many of the
symptoms; however they do not prevent disease ess@gn. In January 2007, we were awarded fundingheyMichael J. Fox Foundation for
Parkinson’s Research (MJFF) to support the devebmpmof a ZFP TF activator of glial cell line-derd/aeurotrophic factor (GDNF) to treat
PD. The $950,000 award will be paid over a peribtho years. In collaboration with scientists a¢ tniversity of California, San Francisco
(UCSF), we are
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evaluating ZFP TFs that activate tjiel cell line-derived neurotrophic factor (GDNIgene in pre-clinical animal efficacy models of
Parkinson’s Disease.

Stroke

A stroke occurs when a blood clot blocks an arteryg blood vessel breaks, interrupting blood ftovan area of the brain. When eithe
these events happen, brain cells begin to die &etlyuresulting in brain damage. When brain celtsdiiring a stroke, abilities controlled by
that area of the brain are lost. These abilitiesiocalude speech, movement and memory. How a spakent is affected depends on where the
stroke occurs in the brain and how much the bataimaged. According to the American Heart Assiaciastroke killed 150,074 people in
2004 and is the third largest cause of death irUthieed States. Data from Greater Cincinnati/Namh€entucky Stroke Study/National Instit
of Neurological Diseases and Stroke (GCNKSS/NINB8jlies show that about 780,000 people suffer aare@current stroke each year.
About 600,000 of these are first attacks and 18Dd)@ recurrent attacks. As a consequence strakie&ling cause of serious, long-term
disability in the US. About 5.8 million stroke sivers are alive today. We are evaluating our ZFPattvator of the VEGFA gene in pre-
clinical animal efficacy models of stroke.

ZFP Therapeutic Research Progran

We also have several research stage ZFN-mediaterlrgedification programs in progress. These it include programs in
hemophilia and the hemoglobinopathies and in immayséem disorders such as X-linked severe combmetinodeficiency (Xinked SCID)

CORPORATE RELATIONSHIPS

We are applying our ZFP technology platform to saveommercial applications in which our produatsyide Sangamo and our
strategic partners and collaborators with potemgiehnical, competitive, and economic advantagdsend/and when appropriate, we have
established or will continue to pursue ZFP Theréiperategic partnerships, corporate partnersimip®n-therapeutic areas and Enabling
Technology collaborations with selected pharmacaytbiotechnology and chemical companies to fumernal research and development
activities and to assist in product development@rdmercialization.

We believe the advancement of our first ZFP Thartipe into clinical trials has come at a timely qdin the evolution of the worldwide
pharmaceutical industry. Large pharmaceutical congsaface revenue growth challenges that compet ten-license or acquire emerging
therapeutic technologies. The presentation of filata our ZFP Therapeutic Phase 2 clinical trial2@®8 may bring attention to our other ZFP
Therapeutic programs and to the potential of ZFErdpeutics to address non-druggable, yet high-\aiug targets.

Agreement with Dow AgroSciences in Plant Agricultue

Sangamo scientists and collaborators have showZ B TFs and ZFNs can be used to regulate andfyngelnes in plants. The ability
to regulate gene expression with engineered ZFPnidyslead to the creation of new plants that ireeeaop yields, lower production costs,
more resistant to herbicides, pesticides, and platitogens, which could permit the developmentrafided agricultural products with unique
nutritional and processing characteristics. In ddj ZFNs may be used to facilitate the efficiant reproducible generation of transgenic
plants. Effective as of October 1, 2005, we entémémla Research License and Commercial Option égent with Dow AgroSciences LLC
(“DAS”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Dow Chemidabrporation. Under this agreement, we will proviZiéS with access to our proprietary
ZFP technology and the exclusive right to use deP Zechnology to modify the genomes or alter theaic acid or protein expression of plant
cells, plants, or plant cell cultures. We haveired rights to use plants or plant-derived prodtetdeliver ZFP TFs or ZFNs into human or
animals for diagnostic, therapeutic, or prophyaptirposes. We have announced the achievementeradenilestones in this collaboration.

Our agreement with DAS provides for an initial #gear research term during which time we are wgrkogether to validate and
optimize the application of our ZFP technology ks, plant cells and plant cell
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cultures. A joint committee having equal represiéoafrom both companies oversees this researchin@the initial three-year research term,
DAS has the option to obtain a commercial licemsgetl products incorporating or derived from pleells generated using our ZFP
technology, including agricultural crops, indudtpeoducts and plant-derived biopharmaceutical& dption expires on September 30, 2008.
This commercial license will be exclusive for alich products other than animal and human healtthygts. In the event that DAS exercises
this option, DAS may elect to extend the researdgmam beyond the initial three-year term on a ytegyear basis.

Pursuant to the Research License and Commerci@Ofpgreement, DAS made an initial cash paymentstof $7.5 million. In
November 2005, we sold approximately 1.0 millioargs of common stock to DAS at a price of $3.85share, resulting in proceeds
$3.9 million. In addition, DAS will provide $6.0 ifion in research funding over the initial thrgear research term and may make an addit
payment of up to $4.0 million in research milestpagments to us during this same period, depermhintpe success of the research program.
In the event that DAS elects to extend the researafram beyond the initial three-year term, DAS piiovide additional research funding. If
DAS exercises its option to obtain a commerciarse, we will be entitled to full payment of theG#illion in research milestones, a one-
time exercise fee of $6.0 million, minimum annuabkcensing payments totaling to up to $25.3 millmver 11 years and commercialization
milestone payments for each product, and royattiesales of products. Furthermore, DAS will hawerilght to sublicense our ZFP technology
to third parties for use in plant cells, plantsptamt cell cultures, and we will be entitled t@2%f any cash consideration received by DAS
under such sublicenses.

We have agreed to supply DAS and its sublicensébsAkP TFs and/or ZFNs for both research and coroiaeuse over the three year
period of the agreement. If DAS exercises its apt@obtain a commercial license, DAS may requestwe transfer, at DAS’s expense, the
ZFP manufacturing technology to DAS or to a mutualjreed-upon contract manufacturer.

The Research License and Commercial Option Agreemidrterminate automatically if DAS fails to ex@se its option for a commerci
license by the end of the initial three-year reskeaerm or September 30, 2008. Following DAS's eiger of the option and payment of the
exercise fee, DAS may terminate the agreementyatime. In addition, each party may terminate theeament upon an uncured material
breach of the other party. In the event of any teation of the agreement, all rights to use our Z&dhnology will revert to us, and DAS will
no longer be permitted to practice our ZFP techyplar to develop or, except in limited circumstasya@mmercialize any products derived
from our ZFP technology. Revenues related to tkearch license under the DAS agreement are betogmezed ratably over the three year
research term of the agreement and were $2.5 milising 2007, $2.5 million during 2006 and $62B,@@ring 2005. Revenues attributabli
collaborative research and development performei@iutne DAS agreement were $2.0 million during 2274 million during 2006 and
$51,000 during 2005. Revenues attributable to nufespayments were $840,000 during 2007 and $38@|0fAng 2006. Related costs and
expenses incurred under the DAS agreement were @B during 2007, and $568,000 and $51,000 dur@@$ znd 2005, respectively.

Agreement with Sigma-Aldrich Corporation in Laboratory Research Reagents

In July 2007, we entered into a license agreeméht8igma. Under the License Agreement, we areigiog Sigma with access to our
proprietary ZFP technology and the exclusive rightise the technology to develop and commerciaigearch reagents products and services
in the research field, excluding certain agricudtuesearch uses that Sangamo previously licemsBdw AgroSciences LLC. Under the
agreement, Sangamo and Sigma have agreed to canthuee-year research program to develop labgrag¢search reagents using our ZFP
technology. In addition, for three years we wiligs Sigma in connection with Sigma’s efforts torkedt and sell services employing our
technology in the research field. We will trandfee ZFP manufacturing technology to Sigma or toudually agreed-upon contract
manufacturer upon Sigma’s request. Prior to theptetion of this transfer, we will be responsible supplying ZFPs for use by Sigma in
performing services in the research field. Undertdrms of the agreement, Sigma made an initiaheay
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comprising an upfront license fee and the purclods®e million shares of Sangamo’s common stocleuadseparate stock purchase
agreement, resulting in a total upfront paymergaogamo of $13.5 million. There were three comptntenthe $13.5 million we received: an
equity investment by Sigma in Sangamo common statked at $8.55 million, a $3.95 million license fand $1.0 million of research
funding. Under the License Agreement, we may rexanditional research funding of up to $2.0 millidevelopment milestone payments of
up to $5.0 million, and commercial milestone paytsdrased on net sales of up to $17.0 million, sli@the continuation of the agreement.
During the term of the license agreement Sigmaiigated to pay to Sangamo minimum annual paymengbare of certain revenues received
by Sigma from sublicensees, and royalty paymenthesale of licensed products and services. Sajsmhas the right to sublicense the ZFP
technology for research applications and we wikiee 50% of any sublicensing revenues in the fivstyears and 25% of any sublicensing
revenues thereafter. We retain the sole right éoausl license our ZFP technology for GMP producpiorposes, for the production of mater
used in or administered to humans, and for anyratisiistrial commercial use. Revenues relatededitiense under the Sigma agreement are
being recognized ratably. We are recognizing th@ #iillion of research funding over a 12-month pdrand the $3.95 million license fee over
the 36-month research period of the agreement. iRgereceived under the agreement were $1.1 mdiivimg 2007. Related costs and
expenses incurred under the Sigma agreement wé6eGk® during 2007.

Enabling Technology Programs and Partners

We began marketing our Enabling Technologies tgti@maceutical and biotechnology industry in 1998t Enabling Technology
collaborations have been based upon applying oy T and ZFN technology and intellectual propentpiioducts and areas outside of ZFP
Therapeutics.

Enabling Technology Collaborations in PharmaceutichProtein Production

In 2005, sales of biotech protein therapeuticstred44.5 billion, while revenue from therapeutitizodies alone was $13.6 billion. T
antibody therapeutics market was expected to geneades in excess of $22.0 billion by 2007.

Sangamo scientists have demonstrated that ZFP-eargithmammalian cells may be used to increasdeltkof systems used for
pharmaceutical protein production. We are alsoyapglour ZFN-technology for cell engineering in thieas of protein production and drug
discovery.

We have established several research collaboratiahss area. In December 2004, we announcedearels collaboration agreement v
Pfizer to use our ZFP technology to develop enhéduced lines for protein pharmaceutical productidhe scope of this agreement was
expanded in January 2006 and again in January 0@ provided further research funding from Pfizedévelop additional cell lines for
enhanced protein production. Under the terms oafreement, Pfizer is funding research at Sangard&angamo will provide our propriet:
ZFP technology for Pfizer to assess its feasibitityuse in mammalian cell-based protein productile are generating novel cell lines and
vector systems for enhanced protein productionedsag novel technology for rapid creation of neduction cell lines. During the first
quarters of 2007, 2006 and 2005, we received $280 775,000 and $500,000, respectively, in rebeggiated funding under our agreements
with Pfizer. Revenues attributable to collaboratiesearch and development performed under therRfggeement were $96,000, $747,000 and
$790,000 during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectiVdjated costs and expenses incurred under the Bffreements were $358,000 during
2007 and $342,000 and $154,000 during 2006 and, 286pectively.

In January 2005, we also announced an agreemdnwigen Inc. and in September 2005 a similar agesé¢nvith Novo Nordisk Inc.
We are providing our ZFP technology to several canigs including Amgen, Inc., Novartis A/G and Navordisk Inc. for evaluation of its u
in developing enhanced cell lines for protein piighn. In addition, in April 2007, we establishedegearch and license agreement with
Genentech. Under
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our agreement with Genentech, we are developinblsafapable of making targeted modifications togeeome of Genentech cell lines to
generate cell lines with novel characteristicsfiatein pharmaceutical production purposes. Theeagent was expanded to include further
ZFNs in February 2008. Genentech has paid an upfeenwill pay an ongoing technology access fed, @rtain payments upon achievement
of specified milestones relating to the researcBFils and the development and commercializatigprofiucts manufactured using a modified
cell line created by our ZFN technology. Revenugbatable to collaborative research and develaprperformed under the Genentech
agreement were $283,000 during 2007. Costs anchegpgerformed under the Genentech agreement &2/@0® during 2007.

Funding from Research Foundations
The Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation Interraial

On October 26, 2006, we announced a partnershipthét Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation Irtienzd (JDRF) to provide
financial support to one of our Phase 2 humanddirstudies of SB-509, a ZFP Therapeutic that dewmelopment for the treatment of diabetic
neuropathy. Under the agreement with JDRF and sutgjéts terms and conditions, including the Compa achievement of certain milestol
associated with the Company’s Phase 2 clinicdl @fi&B-509 for the treatment of mild to moderaiabe:tic neuropathy, JDRF will pay the
Company an aggregate amount of up to $3.0 millldmough December 31, 2007, we have received $2Al®miAfter the first commercial
launch of SB-509 in a major market, JDRF has thktrio receive, subject to certain limitations, @arpayments from Sangamo, until such
time when the total amount paid to JDRF, includdiagments made on account of certain licensing genaents, equals three times the amount
received by us from JDRF.

Under the agreement, we are obligated to use coamatigreasonable efforts to carry out the Phat#Rand, thereafter, to develop and
commercialize, a product containing SB-509 forttieatment of diabetes and complications of diab&tésare obligated to cover all costs of
the Phase 2 trial that are not covered by JDRREstgif we fail to satisfy these obligations, JDRBRy have the right, subject to certain
limitations, to obtain an exclusive, sublicensdlense, to the intellectual property generatedidyn the course of the Phase 2 trial, to make
and commercialize products containing SB-509 fertteatment of diabetes and complications of dexbéf JDRF obtains such a license, it is
obligated to pay us a percentage of its revenwes firoduct sales and sublicensing arrangemeniBRf- fails to satisfy its obligations to
develop and commercialize a product containing 8B-&nder the Agreement, then their license righiis@minate and we will receive a non-
exclusive, fully paid license, for any intellectymbperty developed during JDRF’s use of the lieets research, develop and commercialize
products containing SB-509 for the treatment obdias and complications of diabetes.

During 2007, revenues attributable to researchdavelopment performed under the JDRF partnership %&.5 million. Related costs
and expenses during 2007 were $4.7 million.

The Michael J. Fox Foundation

On January 23, 2007, we announced a partnershiipthétMichael J. Fox Foundation (MJFF) to provisficial support of our ZFP TI
to activate the expression of glial cell line-dedwneurotrophic factor (GDNF) that has shown prenrispreclinical testing to slow or stop the
progression of Parkinson’s disease. Under the aggeewith MJFF and subject to its terms and coongj MJFF will pay the Company
$950,000 over a period of two years. Through De@arth, 2007, we have received $408,000. Reventrédsuddble to research and
development performed under the MJFF partnershije $897,000 during 2007. Related costs and expénsa@sed under the MIFF
partnership were $397,000 during 2007.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND TECHNOLOGY LICENSES

Patents and licenses are important to our busiassstrategy is to file or license patent applaad to protect technology, inventions .
improvements to inventions that we consider impurtar the development
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of our business. We seek patent protection anddie® that relate to our technology and candidatesri pipeline and/or may be important to
our future. We have filed or licensed numerousmatand patent applications with the United StR&tent and Trademark Office (USPTO)
and foreign patent jurisdictions. This proprietarellectual property includes methods relatingh® design of zinc finger proteins, therapeutic
applications and enabling technologies. We relya@ombination of patent, copyright, trademark, pietpary know—how, continuing
technological innovations, trade secret laws, dsageconfidentiality agreements, materials tranafgreements and licensing agreements, to
establish and protect our proprietary rights.

We have licensed intellectual property directethedesign, selection, and use of ZFPs, ZFP TFZ&hS for gene regulation and
modification from the Massachusetts Institute offirlogy (MIT), Johnson & Johnson, The Scripps Redelnstitute (TSRI), The Johns
Hopkins University (JHU), Harvard University, theellical Research Council, the California Institutd echnology, City of Hope, and the
University of Utah. These licenses grant us rightake, use, and sell ZFPs , ZFP TFs, and ZFNsrutfsifamilies of patent filings. As of
January 2008, these patent filings have resultdd iissued U.S. patents and 15 granted foreigmfsaté/e believe these licensed patents and
patent applications include several of the early iamportant patent filings directed to design, séte, composition, and use of ZFPs, ZFP ~
and ZFNs.

In addition to our in-licensed patent portfolio,afslanuary 25, 2008, we had 62 families of Sangamed or co-owned patent filings,
including 47 issued U.S. patents, 115 granted gorpiatents, 79 pending U.S. patent applicationsl@idpending foreign patent applications.
These patent filings are directed to improvememthé design, composition, and use of ZFPs, ZFR di$ ZFNs. The earliest patents in our
portfolio are set to begin expiring in 2015, wittetmajority of our currently issued patents exgifetween 2019 and 2021. However, these
patents in our estate may be subject to Patent Aeljimstment (due to delays in patent prosecutiothieyU.S. Patent and Trademark Office),
Patent Term Extension (due to review of a patepteduct by a regulatory agency) or terminal disoki. Additionally, patents that may be
issued from our pending applications will extend gatent exclusivity of our patent estate. Accagljinall dates given above for patent
expirations are estimates.

In the aggregate, we believe that our licensednpatnd patent applications, as well as the isSaagjamo patents and pending Sangamo
patent applications, will provide us with a substmproprietary position in our commercial devatognt of ZFP technology. In this regard,
patents issued to us, applied for by us, or exaligiand non-exclusively licensed to us, coverftiewing types of inventions, processes and
products:

. ZFP and ZFN design, engineering and compositiomdudes DNA target site and zinc finger bindingraon design (see newly
issued US7241573 and US7241574), ZFP librarieabdaes (see newly issued US7177766) and methadsistiuction (see new
issued US7217509), as well as methods to incréasdirger binding specificity; and methods of madimodified plant zinc finge
proteins (see newly issued US7262054 and US7273

. ZFP targeted regulation of endogenous gemesthods relating to activation and inhibition oflegenous cellular genes (see newly
issued US7220719), modulation of ZFP-regulated gampeession by small molecules (see newly issued0d@934), identification
of accessible regions within chromatin, regulattbhocopherol synthesis in plants (see US2004009180which we have recently
received a notice of allowance), regulation of egemus plant genes (see newly issued US726205%2628%4 and US728541¢

. ZFP TherapeuticsTreatment of virally or microbially infected cellsancer therapeutics such as methods to alter tgroarth,
activation of endogenous PEDF for treatment of reatineck cancer, glioblastoma, prostate cancepancreatic cancer,
regulation of angiogenesis (including newly issu&i7026462 and US7067317), treatments for ischeariditions, neuropathic
pain (see newly issued US7253273), crushed nelPagkjnson’s disease, chronic pain, diabetic nedhgp@eripheral vascular
disease, ocular neovasculariztion including agateel macular degeneration (AMD), diabetic retinbpdDR) and retinopathy of
prematurity (see US20060210539), and modulatiaraadiac contractility
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. ZFN TherapeuticsTreatments for HIV, sickle cell anemia, an-linked severe combined immunodeficiency (SCI

. ZFP Enabling TechnologieMethods for linking genes and phenotypes, idemifon of genes (see newly issued US72352
analysis of gene regulation (see newly issued UB429), structure and biological function, methotlagricultural biotechnology,
and methods of altering cellular differentiatioatst

. ZFN Enabling Technologied/ethods for identification of regulatory DNA seques, prediction of patient response to drug
therapeutics, and development of cell lines forriorpd protein production (see newly issued US718R¢

We have been advised that certain aspects of ocanddogy can give us and our collaborators indepead from third party patent claims
to gene sequences. In general, under United Siatest law, a patent may be obtained for any nedwaeful process, machine, manufacture,
or composition of matter. An underlying theme ofitdd States patent law, as related to biotechnolisgat the sequence of a gene, as it ¢
in the chromosome, is not new, even when newlyodisied, unless it is isolated or modified fromntgmal chromosomal context. As a result,
for over a decade, patent courts have held thét featentable, a DNA sequence must be purifiethtesd or modified. Accordingly, U.S.
patent claims to DNA sequences can cover only ted|gurified or modified nucleic acid sequenceg.(& purified DNA fragment or a DNA
sequence inserted into a vector). We have beesedithat U.S. patent claims to DNA sequences daandtcannot, cover gene sequences as
they exist in their natural chromosomal environmeemd international patent law is even more stringfegsn U.S. patent law in this regard. M
current methods for over-expression of a gene atepr involve introduction, into a cell, of a vectmntaining a DNA encoding the protein to
be over-expressed. Since such a vector contaitedsiosequences which encode the protein, it woelldovered by any patent claims to those
sequences. In contrast, our methods for over-egjmesitilize ZFP TFs that target endogenous ges¢ley exist in the chromosome. As a
result, our methods do not require the use of isdI®NA sequences encoding the protein to be oxeressed and, our counsel has advised us
do not infringe patent claims to such sequenceswitttstanding this advice, we realize that othersld take a contrary position that could
result in litigation. While we believe that we wdydrevail in any such litigation, the uncertaintiegolved in litigation generally make it
impossible to provide assurance as to the ultimateome of such matters. See “Risk FactoBeecause it is difficult and costly to protect our
proprietary rights, and third parties have filedtpat applications that are similar to ours, we cahensure the proprietary protection of c
technologies and products

The patent positions of pharmaceutical and bioteldgy firms, including our patent position, are artain and involve complex legal ¢
factual questions for which important legal terats largely unresolved. Patent applications mayemilt in the issuance of patents and the
coverage claimed in a patent application may beifségntly reduced before a patent is issued.

Although we have filed for patents on some aspefctair technology, we cannot provide assurancespia@nts will be issued as a result
of these pending applications or that any pateattiths been or may be issued will be upheld. Tle & some foreign countries may not
protect our proprietary rights to the same extsrd@the laws of the United States. One of ouridorpatents, which forms the basis for five
European Regional Phase patents, has been revskerkault of an opposition by a third party. Gcersor, The Johns Hopkins University,
appealed the revocation but in April 2007, the peamn Technical Board of Appeal released its detidismissing the appeal. As of
January 25, 2008, US patent numbers US5,792,64086¢265,196, licensed to Sangamo from The JohmkiH® University, were
undergoing reexamination, and we do not know what the outcomth®process will be. In the future, third partiesy assert patent, copyrig
trademark, and other intellectual property rigltsetchnologies that are important to our busin&eyg.claims asserting that our products
infringe or may infringe proprietary rights of tiparties, if determined adversely to us, coulaifigantly harm our business. See “Risk
Factors—Because it is difficult and costly to protect owoprietary rights, and third parties have filed eat applications that are similar to
ours, we cannot ensure the proprietary protectibowr technologies and products
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Estimated Licensing Expenses

If we are successful in the development and comialeration of our products, we will be obligated byr license agreements to make
milestone and royalty payments to some or all eflitensors mentioned above. We believe that patginents under these agreements ove
next three years will not exceed $1.5 million. Feks associated with our intellectual property $Risk Factors—Because it is difficult and
costly to protect our proprietary rights, and thiparties have filed patent applications that anair to ours, we cannot ensure the
proprietary protection of our technologies and puats.” We plan to continue to license and to interngignerate intellectual property
covering the design, selection, composition, arelafiZFPs; the genes encoding these proteins;hendpplication of ZFPs, ZFP TFs, and
ZFNs in ZFP Therapeutics, Enabling Technology aagidons, and in plant agriculture research.

COMPETITION

We are a leader in the research, development, @ndhercialization of DNA binding proteins for thegtéation of gene expression and
gene modification. We are aware of several comgaioieused on other methods for regulating geneessn and a limited number of
commercial and academic groups pursuing the derr@apof ZFP gene regulation and gene modificagmhmology. The field of applied ge
regulation and gene modification is highly competitand we expect competition to persist and infgms the future from a number of
different sources, including pharmaceutical, adtical, and biotechnology companies; academic asdarch institutions; and government
agencies that will seek to develop ZFPs as wetktalsnologies that will compete with our ZFP teclogyl platform.

In July 2001, we strengthened our competitive pmrsiby completing our acquisition of Gendaq Ltd n@aq scientists had also focused
their research efforts on regulating genes thrabghengineering of ZFPs and they brought signifieatditional know-how and intellectual
property into Sangamo. Despite our strong presenttee field of ZFP technology and intellectual peoty, any products that we develop with
our ZFP TF and ZFN technology may participate ghhi competitive markets.

Accordingly, our competitors may succeed in obtagnpatent protection, receiving FDA approval, amoeercializing ZFP Therapeutics
or other competitive products before us. If we canoe commercial product sales, we may be compatiagist companies with greater
marketing and manufacturing capabilities, areashich we have limited or no experience. In additiany product candidate that we
successfully develop may compete with existing potsl that have long histories of safe and effeaise

Although we are in the clinical development phakseperations and have no current therapeutic prioskles, we believe the following
companies, products and/or technologies may palgntie competitive with our technology or our puats under development:

. Small molecules in development from bot-house drug discovery programs of pharmaceuticapeamies such as Eli Lilly ar
Company, Merck & Co., Inc. and Pfizer, as well esf biotechnology companies with expertise and lo#ifias in small molecule
discovery and development such as Exelixis Inc.Millénnium Pharmaceuticals, In

. Monoclonal antibody companies and product candidfiten certain biotechnology firms such as Amgen,IGenentech, Medarex
Inc., Medimmune, Inc. and PDL BioPharma, |

. Protein pharmaceuticals under development at ptaautigal and biotechnology companies such as ArhgenBiogen Idec, El
Lilly and Company, Genentech, Johnson & Johnsomamaerous other pharmaceutical and biotechnolagysfi

. Gene therapy companies who are developing-based products in clinical trials. None of thesadpicts have yet been approv
Our competitors in this category may include Cadh@sys, Inc., GenVec Inc., Targeted Genetics Catjporand VIRXSYS
Corporation
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. Antisense therapeutics and RNA interference tedgylor RNAI, which are two technologies that maynpete with ZFF
Therapeutics in the development of novel therapertiducts acting through the regulation of ger@ession. These technologies
are being developed by several companies includlinglam Pharmaceuticals, Isis Pharmaceuticals, and Merck & Co. Inc

. Nuclease technologies: Cellectis SA and Precisio$&ences are developing meganucleases to acangane modificatior

We expect to face intense competition from othenganies for collaborative arrangements with phagutical and biotechnology,
companies; for establishing relationships with &ecait and research institutions; and for licensgxdprietary technology. These competitors,
either alone or with their collaborative partnemay succeed in developing technologies or prodhetisare more effective or less costly than
ours.

Our ability to compete successfully will dependpart, on our ability to:

. develop safe and efficacious proprietary prodt

. obtain access to gene transfer technology on comatlgrreasonable term

. obtain required regulatory approve

. attract and retain qualified scientific and proddetelopment personnt

. obtain and enforce patents, licenses, or otherr@tapy protection for our products and technoleg
. formulate, manufacture, market, and sell any prothat we develop; an

. develop and maintain products that reach the méirs¢tand are technologically superior to or aféoaver cost than other products
in the market

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

The research, testing manufacturing and marketifgiman therapeutics are extensively regulatetiéninited States and the rest of the
world. Before commencing clinical investigationshimmans, we must submit to, and receive approwat fthe U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) of an Investigational New Dr@gND) Application.

Before marketing in the United States, any therapeu pharmaceutical products developed by us mogergo rigorous preclinical
testing (generally conducted in animals) and clihidals in humans and an extensive regulatorgrelece process implemented by the FDA
under the federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. FDA regulates, among other things, the developntesting, manufacture, safety, effica
record keeping, labeling, storage, approval, aisieg, promotion, sale, and distribution of biopharceutical products. The regulatory review
and approval process, which includes preclinicsting and clinical trials of each product candigdédengthy, expensive, and uncertain.
Securing FDA approval requires the submission téresive preclinical and clinical data and suppariitformation including manufacturing
information and stability data to the FDA for eactication to establish a product candidate’s yadeid efficacy. The approval process takes
many years, requires the expenditure of substamesalurces, involves post-marketing surveillanoé, may involve ongoing requirements for
post-marketing studies.

Clinical trials are lengthy and are typically conthd in three sequential phases, but the phaseswealap or be combined. Each trial
must be reviewed and approved by an independeissetbmmittee or institutional review board of eaehticipating hospital before it can
begin. Phase 1 usually involves the initial introtilon of the investigational drug into healthy valeers or patients to evaluate certain factors,
including its safety and dose tolerance. Phaseidllysinvolves trials in a limited patient populatito evaluate dosage tolerance and
appropriate dosage, identify possible adverse &sffmud safety risks, and evaluate preliminary affjcof the drug for specific indications.
Phase 3 trials usually further evaluate clinicficaty and test further for safety by using thegdiuits final form in an expanded patient
population. Phase 2 and 3 trials must be registeradyovernment database of clinical trials. Latarical trials may fail to support the findin
of earlier trials, which can delay, limit or pre¥eagulatory approvals.
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We filed a Phase 1 clinical protocol for reviewthg National Institutes of Health Recombinant AdwyisCommittee (NIH RAC) in the
fourth quarter of 2004, an IND in January 2005, Bhdse 2 protocols for review by the FDA in 2008 2607 for our first product candidate,
SB-509, for the potential treatment of diabetic neatby. We have also filed Phase 1 clinical protofmigeview by the NIH RAC for our HI
and glioblastoma programs. Both of these prograstopols received unanimous approval from this cottemi

We have recently completed enroliment of subjectsur first Phase 2 clinical trial (SB-509-601) dral/e two other Phase 2 clinical
trials (SB-509-701 and SB-509-703) and a Phas@ital study (0310-611) ongoing. Although our léhdrapeutic candidate, SB-509, has
shown a favorable safety profile to date throughdehl testing, there can be no assurances thatghehapy will be tolerated after prolonged
dosing or that clinical efficacy or safety of th@guct will be demonstrated in later stage testing.

Outside the United States, our ability to markpt@duct is contingent upon receiving marketing ati#tation from the appropriate
regulatory authorities. The requirements govertivggconduct of clinical trials, marketing authotiea, pricing, and reimbursement vary
widely from country to country. At present, foreigrarketing authorizations are applied for at aameti level; although, within the European
Union (EU), registration procedures are availabledmpanies wishing to market a product in more thae EU member state. If the regulat
authority is presented with adequate evidencefetysaquality, and efficacy, they will grant a mating authorization. This foreign regulatory
approval process involves all of the risks assediatith FDA clearance discussed above.

We have hired personnel with expertise in prediihénd clinical development of therapeutic programg products and clinical and
regulatory affairs to assist us in developing aurgpams and obtaining appropriate regulatory apgleoas required. We also intend to work
with collaborators who have experience in clinidavelopment to assist us in obtaining regulatopyr@yals for collaborative productSee Ris
Factor—" Our potential therapeutic products are subject tergthy and uncertain regulatory process, anthése potential products are not
approved, we will not be able to commercialize ¢hpsoducts and—Regulatory approval, if granted, im@yimited to specific uses or
geographic areas which could limit our ability tergerate revenue”

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Research and development expenses have consistetifyr of salaries and related personnel expersiesk-based compensation
expense, laboratory supplies, pre-clinical andadinstudies, allocated facilities costs, subcaried research expenses, and expenses for
technology licenses. Costs to acquire technoladigsare utilized in research and development hatlitave no alternative future use are
expenses as incurred. Research and developmenmisegeere $25.6 million, $21.5 million, and $10i8iom for 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. We believe that continued investniemésearch and development is critical to att@jroar strategic objectives. We expect these
expenses will increase significantly as we increglgi focus on development of ZFP Therapeutics. Bipally, in order to develop ZFPs as
commercially relevant therapeutics, we expect fweex additional resources on manufacturing, regolatffairs and clinical research.

EMPLOYEES

As of February 1, 2008, we had 83 full-time empksjeall of whom are located in Richmond, CalifortNane of our employees are
represented by a collective bargaining agreementhave we experienced work stoppages. We belleateour relations with our employees
are good.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Sangamo can be found on the internet at http://vgamgamo.com. We make available free of charger tlraugh our internet site, our
annual, quarterly, and current reports and any dments to those reports filed or furnished purstm&ection 13(a) of the Exchange Act as
soon as reasonably practicable after we electriyiiii@ such material with, or furnish it to, tHeEC. Information contained in Sangamo’s
internet site is not part of this report.
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Iltem 1A.  Risk Factors
ZFP Therapeutics have undergone limited testinglinmans and our ZFP Therapeutics may fail safety dtes in clinical trials.

We have initiated and completed a Phase 1 studynitiated several Phase 2 clinical trial in oumdeZFP Therapeutic program. We have
completed enroliment and treatment of the patientise first of these trials of SB-509 for diabatieuropathy and thus far have not observed
any serious drug-related adverse events. Howewerrifead ZFP Therapeutic fails one of its inisafety studies, it could reduce our ability to
attract new investors and corporate partners.noaly 2005, we filed an IND with the FDA for SB-5@ZFP TF activator of VEGHR; for the
treatment of mild to moderate diabetic neuropatkig. have completed enrollment and treatment of @éhasingle blind, single dose, dose-
escalation trial to measure the laboratory andadirsafety of SB-509. We have completed enrollntérat repeat-dosing Phase 2 clinical trial
(SB-509-601) and have 2 other related Phase 2 tigjoing for this indication (SB-509-701 and SEB-5M3). Some trial subjects have
received more than one dose of SB-509 during thieseoof these Phase 2 studies. In addition, Phabeidal trials of an identical ZFP TF has
been carried out in subjects with peripheral arthsgase. These early studies of a ZFP Therapangtia highly visible test of our ZFP
Therapeutic approach. Since we have increasedousfon ZFP Therapeutic research and developnmeeistors will increasingly assess the
value of our technology based on the continuednessgof ZFP Therapeutic products into and throuigiicel trials. If the initial safety study
our lead therapeutic was halted due to safety coscéhis would negatively affect our operationd #me value of our stock.

The results of early Phase 1 trials are based osnaall number of patients over a short period of g8frand our progress may not be
indicative of results in a large number of patients of long-term efficacy.

The results in early phases of clinical testinglaased upon limited numbers of patients and aduniollow-up period. Typically, our
Phase 1 clinical trials for indications of safetyal less than 50 patients. The initial resultenfrthe Phase 1 clinical trial of our ZFP
Therapeutic, SB-509 product, became availableerfitbt half of 2006 and more were presented ireJamd November of 2007. The primary
end point of the trial was clinical and laboratsafety, however we collected some preliminary afficdata that showed trends of clinical
improvement in some subjects. Our first Phaserfadl trial (SB-509-601) for safety and efficacystenrolled 110 patients. Actual results with
more data points may not confirm favorable reduttsn earlier stage trials. A number of companieth@pharmaceutical and biotechnology
industries have suffered significant setbacks te@ $dage clinical trials even after achieving praing results in earlier stage clinical trials. If a
larger population of patients does not experierastive results, or if these results are reprodecibur products may not receive approval fi
the FDA. Failure to demonstrate the safety anccaffeness of our ZFP Therapeutic products in lapggient populations could have a material
adverse effect on our business that would causstoak price to decline significantly.

We have limited experience in conducting clinicaidis.

Our ZFP Therapeutics may fail to show the desieddtg and efficacy in initial clinical trials. Wealie completed a Phase 1 trial and
initiated several Phase 2 clinical trials, compigtenrollment on one of these studies. Howeverf-iha will require additional clinical testing
which involves significantly greater resources, atitments and expertise that may require us to eénter collaborative relationship with a
pharmaceutical company that could assume resptitysibr late-stage development and commercialaati

We may not be able to find acceptable patients @yrexperience delays in enrolling patients for oclinical trials.

We may be competing for suitable patients with ottiaical trials. We or the FDA may suspend ounicil trials at any time if either
believes that we are exposing the subjects paaticig in these trials to unacceptable health risk& FDA or institutional review boards anc
institutional biosafety committees at the
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medical institutions and healthcare facilities véhere sponsor clinical trials may suspend any inidéfinitely if they find deficiencies in the
conduct of these trials. The FDA and institutioreliew boards may also require large numbers éépiat and the FDA may require that we
repeat a clinical trial.

Our potential therapeutic products are subject tdeangthy and uncertain regulatory process, and wayrencounter unanticipated
toxicity or adverse events or fail to demonstraffiaacy, causing us to delay, suspend or termin#tie development of a ZFP Therapeutic. If
these potential products are not approved, we wilt be able to commercialize those products.

The FDA must approve any human therapeutic proefdre it can be marketed in the United States.prbeess for receiving regulatc
approval is long and uncertain, and a potentiatlpcd may not withstand the rigors of testing untierregulatory approval processes.

Before commencing clinical trials in humans, we haubmit an Investigational New Drug (IND) applicatto the FDA. The FDA has
30 days to comment on the IND. If the FDA doesawhment on the IND, we or our commercial partney imegin clinical trials.

Clinical trials are subject to oversight by ingtiitcnal review boards and the FDA. In addition, puvposed clinical studies require review
from the Recombinant DNA Advisory Committee, or RAhich is the advisory board to the National lugés of Health, or NIH, focusing on
clinical trials involving gene transfer. We willgically submit a proposed clinical protocol andestproduct-related information to the RAC
three to six months prior to the expected IND §lidate.

Clinical trials:

. must be conducted in conformance with the I's good clinical practices ICH guidelines and otlygplicable regulation:

. must meet requirements for institutional reviewdo@RB) oversight

. must follow Institutional Biosafety Committee (IB@phd NIH RAC guidelines where applicak

. must meet requirements for informed cons

. are subject to continuing FDA oversig

. may require large numbers of test subjects;

. may be suspended by a commercial partner, the BDAs at any time if it is believed that the subgquarticipating in these trials
are being exposed to unacceptable health risksloe FDA finds deficiencies in the IND or the carndl of these trials

While we have stated our intention to file addiabiND applications during the next several ye#rs is only a statement of intent, and
we may not be able to do so because the assogiaiddct candidates may not meet the necessanyimcatirequirements. In addition, there
can be no assurance that, once filed, an IND agpmic will result in the actual initiation of clical trials.

As we cannot predict whether or when we will obtaggulatory approval to commercialize our produardidates, we cannot predict
the timing of any future revenue from these produzndidates.

We cannot commercialize any of our ZFP Therapetticgenerate revenue until the appropriate regjatothorities have reviewed and
approved the applications for the product cand&laie cannot assure that the regulatory agenclesomiplete their review processes in a
timely manner or that we will obtain regulatory apyal for any product candidate that we or ouramtirators develop. Satisfaction of
regulatory requirements typically takes many yeiardependent upon the type, complexity and nowltye product and requires the
expenditure of substantial resources. Regulatopycmal processes outside the United States indlldg the

23



Table of Contents

risks associated with the FDA approval processddition, we may experience delays or rejectiorsetaipon additional government
regulation from future legislation or administratigction or changes in FDA policy during the peégroduct development, clinical trials a
FDA regulatory review.

If we establish drug development collaborations raollaborators may control aspects of our clinictilals, which could result in
delays and other obstacles in the commercializatafrour proposed products.

For some programs we may be dependent on thirgl paltaborators to design and conduct our clintdals. As a result, we may not be
able to conduct these programs in the manner ¢thetime schedule we currently contemplate. Intafdiif any of these collaborative partn
withdraw support for our programs or proposed potslor otherwise impair their development, our beass could be negatively affected.

We have increased the focus of our research andali@ment programs on human therapeutics, which vifitrease operating
expenditures and the uncertainty of our business.

We have significantly increased the emphasis aodsfof our research and development activitiesih Zherapeutics and have fewer
resources invested in our Enabling Technology @ogr. In the short term, this change may reducesm@nues and increase operating
expenditures due to larger financial outlays tadfpreclinical studies, manufacturing, and cliniedearch. The focus on ZFP Therapeutics will
also increase the visibility of our lead therapeptiograms and the potential impact on the stoemf news releases relating to these
programs.

We are conducting proprietary research to discov#tP Therapeutic product candidates. These programsrease our financial risk
of product failure, may significantly increase ouesearch expenditures, and may involve conflictshwiuture collaborators and strategic
partners.

Our proprietary research programs consist of rebeahich is funded solely by the Company and whieeeCompany retains exclusive
rights to therapeutic products generated by theare$. This is in contrast to certain of our reskgrograms that may be funded by corporate
partners and in which we may share rights to asyltiag products. We have conducted proprietargaesh since inception. However, in the
past several years, our strategy has shifted toplaging greater emphasis on proprietary researdtterapeutic development and we expect
this trend will continue in 2008 as we continugtosecute our Phase 2 clinical trials and bring A8R Therapeutics into clinical trials.
Conducting proprietary research programs may neégee corresponding revenue and may create csnilith our collaborators or strategic
partners over rights to our intellectual properithwespect to our proprietary research activithasy conflict with our collaborators or strategic
partners could reduce our ability to enter intaufatcollaborations or strategic partnering agregmand negatively impact our relationship \
existing collaborators and strategic partners whimhld reduce our revenue and delay or terminat@mduct development. The
implementation of this strategy will involve subigtially greater business risks, the expenditursigiificantly greater funds than our historic
research activities and will require substantiahodtments of time from our management and staff.
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Commercialization of our technologies will depenid,part, on strategic partnering with other compags. If we are not able to find
strategic partners in the future or our strategi@apners do not diligently pursue product developnefforts, we may not be able to deve
our technologies or products, which could slow ogirowth and decrease the value of our stock.

We expect to rely, to some extent, on our stratpgitners to provide funding in support of our ezsh and to perform independent
research and preclinical and clinical testing. @ghnology is broad based, and we do not currgrufgess the resources necessary to fully
develop and commercialize potential products they nesult from our technologies or the resourcesapabilities to complete the lengthy
marketing approval processes that may be requinethé products. Therefore, we plan to rely ontsgia partnerships to help us develop and
commercialize ZFP Therapeutic products. If we arable to find strategic partners or if the partneesfind are unable or unwilling to advance
our programs, or if they do not diligently pursueguct approval, this may slow our progress anérmefir revenues. Our partners may
sublicense or abandon development programs or wehange disagreements with our partners, which woaltse associated product
development to slow or cease. There can be noas=sithat we will be able to establish strategitaborations for ZFP Therapeutic product
development. We may require significant time tausecollaborations or strategic partners becauseegd to effectively market the benefits
our technology to these future collaborators aratesgic partners, which use the time and efforteséarch and development personnel an
management. Further, each collaboration or strategitnering arrangement will involve the negotiatof terms that may be unique to each
collaborator or strategic partner. These busineseldpment efforts may not result in a collaboratio strategic partnership.

The loss of any future strategic partnering agregseould not only delay or terminate the poterdielopment or commercialization
of products we may derive from our technologied,ibmay also delay or terminate our ability tottB5P TFs for specific genes. If any
strategic partner fails to conduct the collaboratietivities successfully and in a timely manniee, preclinical or clinical development or
commercialization of the affected product candidateresearch programs could be delayed or terednat

Under typical strategic partnering agreements welgvexpect to receive revenue for the researchdandlopment of a ZFP Therapeutic
product and based on achievement of specific noihest. Achieving these milestones will depend, i, ma the efforts of our strategic partner
as well as our own. If we, or any strategic partfebl to meet specific milestones, then the sga&t@artnership may be terminated, which could
decrease our revenues.

Our gene regulation and gene modification technolpis relatively new, and if we are unable to usésttechnology in all our intended
applications, it would limit our revenue opportundgs.

Our technology involves a relatively new approaziyéne regulation and gene modification. Althoughhave generated ZFPs for
thousands of gene sequences, we have not creaRsif@diFall gene sequences and may not be able, dehsth could limit the usefulness of
our technology. In addition, while we have demaattsil the function of engineered ZFP TFs in mammai@l culture, yeast, insects, plants,
and animals, we have not yet definitively donershumans, and the failure to do so could restuctability to develop commercially viable
products. If we, and our collaborators or stratggicners, are unable to extend our results tog@wmmercially important genes, experimental
animal models, and human clinical studies, we meaurmable to use our technology in all its intendpglications. Also, delivery of ZFP TFs
and ZFNs into cells and organisms, including humanthese and other environments is limited byimber of technical hurdles, which we
may be unable to surmount. This is a particulatlehge for therapeutic applications of our techgglthat will require the use of gene transfer
systems that may not be effective for the delivefrgur ZFP TFs or ZFNs in a particular therapeapplication.

The expected value and utility of our ZFP TFs aRtNZ is in part based on our belief that the tajetespecific regulation of gene
expression and targeted gene modification may enabto develop a new therapeutic approach asawedl help scientists better understand
the role of genes in disease, to aid their efforts
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in drug discovery and development. We also beltbaéthe regulation of gene expression and targgted addition will have utility in
agricultural applications. There is only a limitedderstanding of the role of specific genes irnttabe fields. Life sciences companies have
developed or commercialized only a few productarin of these fields based on results from genoesiearch or the ability to regulate gene
expression. We, our collaborators, or our stratpgitners, may not be able to use our technologyetatify and validate drug targets or to
develop commercial products in the intended markets

We may be unable to license gene transfer techn@seghat we may need to commercialize our ZFP TEHeology.

In order to regulate a gene in a cell, the ZFP TERN must be efficiently delivered to the cell. \Wave licensed certain gene transfer
technologies for use with our Enabling Technologidsich are ZFP TFs and ZFNs used in pharmaceudisabvery research and protein
production. We are evaluating these systems aret tgbhnologies that may need to be used in theedglof ZFP TFs or ZFNs into cells for
in vitro andin vivo applications, including ZFP Therapeutics. Howewe¥,may not be able to license the gene transfantdogies required to
develop and commercialize our ZFP Therapeuticshde not developed our own gene transfer techredpgind we rely on our ability to
enter into license agreements to provide us withtsi to the necessary gene transfer technologyinBtdity to obtain a license to use gene
transfer technologies with entities which own stethnology on reasonable commercial terms, iflatauld delay or prevent the preclinical
evaluation, clinical testing, and/or commerciali@atof our therapeutic product candidates.

We do not currently have the infrastructure or calpitity to manufacture therapeutic products on a comercial scale.

In order for us to commercialize these productsdliy, we would need to develop, or obtain throogtsourcing arrangements, the
capability to execute all of these functions. If are unable to develop or otherwise obtain theis@iqupreclinical, clinical, regulatory,
manufacturing, marketing, and sales capabilitiesywauld be unable to directly commercialize ourdpeutics products which would limit our
future growth.

Even if our technology proves to be effective, titlsnay not lead to commercially viable products.

Even if our collaborators or strategic partnerssarecessful in using our ZFP technology in drugaligry, protein production, therapet
development, or plant agriculture, they may noable to commercialize the resulting products or mhegide to use other methods competitive
with our technology. To date, no company has rexkimarketing approval or has developed or commeethany therapeutic or agricultural
products based on our technology. Should our tdobggdail to provide safe, effective, useful, omemercially viable approaches to the
discovery and development of these products, thisldvsignificantly limit our business and futuregth and would adversely affect our val

Even if our product development efforts are sucdesand even if the requisite regulatory approvadse obtained, our ZFP
Therapeutics may not gain market acceptance amohggicians, patients, healthcare payers and the ngaticommunity.

A number of additional factors may limit the marketeptance of products including the following:
. rate of adoption by healthcare practitiont

. rate of a produ’s acceptance by the target populat

. timing of market entry relative to competitive pumts;

. availability of alternative therapie

. price of our product relative to alternative theeap

. availability of thirc-party reimbursemen
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. extent of marketing efforts by us and tl-party distributors or agents retained by us;
. side effects or unfavorable publicity concerning products or similar product

Adverse events in the field of gene therapy mayatagly impact regulatory approval or public perdsgn of our potential products.

Our potential therapeutic products are delivereglatitents as gene-based drugs, or gene therapyliffel and commercial success of
our potential products will depend in part on palsicceptance of the use of gene therapy for theept®n or treatment of human diseases.
Public attitudes may be influenced by claims theategtherapy is unsafe, and, consequently, our pteduay not gain the acceptance of the
public or the medical community. Negative publiagion to gene therapy in general could resultr@ater government regulation and stricter
labeling requirements of gene therapy productdudicg any of our products, and could cause a dserén the demand for any products we
may develop.

Our stock price is also influenced by public perdigm.

Reports of serious adverse events in a retroveaégransfer trial for infants with X-linked seve@mbined immunodeficiency (X-linked
SCID) in France and subsequent FDA actions puttfeted trials on hold in the United States ha@jaificant negative impact on the public
perception and stock price of certain companieslirad in gene therapy. Stock prices of these coiepgateclined whether or not the specific
company was involved with retroviral gene tran$gerthe treatment of infants with X-linked SCID, whether the specific company’s clinical
trials were placed on hold in connection with thegents. Other potential adverse events in thd 6Ebene therapy may occur in the future
could result in greater governmental regulatioowf potential products and potential regulatoragelrelating to the testing or approval of our
potential products

We are at the development phase of operations aay mot succeed or become profitable.

We began operations in 1995 and are in the eadggsof ZFP Therapeutic product development. We hewurred significant losses ¢
our net losses for the past three fiscal years@@087, 2006 and 2005 were $21.5 million, $17.9ioniland $13.3 million, respectively. To
date, our revenues have been generated from strategners, Enabling Technology collaborationg federal government research grants.
Since 2005, we have placed significant emphasisigimer-value therapeutic product development atede@ strategic partnerships. This shift
in emphasis has the potential to increase therretaiinvestment to our stockholders by allocatiapital resources to higher value, therapeutic
product development activities. At the same tirh&dreases our financial risk by increasing expsrassociated with product development. In
addition, the preclinical or clinical failure of msingle product, such as our Phase 2 clinicdktodSB-509, may have a significant effect on
the actual or perceived value of our shares. Osinless is subject to all of the risks inherenhim development of a new technology, which
included the need to:

. attract and retain qualified scientific and teclah&taff and management, particularly scientifaffstvith expertise to develop our
early-stage technology into therapeutic produ

. obtain sufficient capital to support the expensdafeloping our technology platform and developiegting, and commercializing
products;

. develop a market for our produc
. successfully transition from a company with a rege&ocus to a company capable of supporting coriaesctivities; anc
. attract and enter into research collaborations veiiearch and academic institutions and scien
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If our competitors develop, acquire, or market tewogies or products that are more effective thamrs, this would reduce or
eliminate our commercial opportunity.

Any products that we or our collaborators or styat@artners develop by using our ZFP technologgfgim will enter into highly
competitive markets. Even if we are able to gemer&®P Therapeutics that are safe and effectivéh&r intended use, competing technologies
may prove to be more effective or less expensiVichy to the extent these competing technologibgeae market acceptance, will limit our
revenue opportunities. In some cases, competitmtdagies have proven to be satisfactorily effectind less expensive, as has been the case
with technologies competitive with our Enabling fiaology. The effectiveness of these competing prtedoas reduced the revenues gene
by our Enabling Technology. Competing technologiey include other methods of regulating gene egiwasor modifying genes. ZFP TFs
and ZFNs have broad application in the life scisrexed compete with a broad array of new technosogyiel approaches being applied to
genetic research by many companies. Competing iptapy technologies with our product developmetfinclude:

. For ZFP Therapeutic:

. small molecule drugs
. monoclonal antibodie:
. recombinant protein:

. gene therapy/cDNA:
. antisense; an
. SsiRNA approache
. For our Enabling Technology Applicatior

. For protein productiongene amplification, meganucleases, insulator tdolgyo mini-chromosome
. For target validation:antisense, siRNA; ar
. For plant agriculture:recombination approaches, mutagenesis approaclkgsmcleases, m-chromosomes
. In addition to possessing competing technologiescompetitors include pharmaceutical and biotetdgycompanies with
. substantially greater capital resources than ¢
. larger research and development staffs and faslitian ours; ar
. greater experience in product development and taiing regulatory approvals and patent protect

. These organizations also compete with ut

. attract qualified personne
. attract parties for acquisitions, joint venturesthrer collaborations; ar
. license the proprietary technologies of academitrasearch institutions that are competitive with technology, which

may preclude us from pursuing similar opportunit

Accordingly, our competitors may succeed in obtagrnpatent protection or commercializing producteieeus. In addition, any products
that we develop may compete with existing prodoctservices that are well established in the mathee.
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Our collaborators or strategic partners may decitbeadopt alternative technologies or may be unatdelevelop commercially viable
products with our technology, which would negatiygmpact our revenues and our strategy to develogse products

Our collaborators or strategic partners may adtptreative technologies, which could decrease theketability of ZFP technology.
Additionally, because many of our collaboratorstwategic partners are likely to be working on mtbi@n one development project, they could
choose to shift their resources to projects othan those they are working on with us. If they dptBis would delay our ability to test our
technology and would delay or terminate the develemt of potential products based on our ZFP teduyolFurther, our collaborators and
strategic partners may elect not to develop pradasing out of our collaborative and strategictpering arrangements or to devote sufficient
resources to the development, manufacturing, miakedr sale of these products. If any of thesenesseccur, we may not be able to develop
our technologies or commercialize our products.

We anticipate continuing to incur operating lossés the next several years. If material losses done for a significant period, we
may be unable to continue our operations.

We have generated operating losses since we begaations in 1995. The extent of our future lossas the timing of profitability are
uncertain, and we expect to incur losses for tiheskeable future. We have been engaged in devglopmZFP TF technology since inception,
which has and will continue to require significaesearch and development expenditures. In July,200completed a registered direct
offering to institutional investors for a total 278,689 shares of common stock, at a price d5§8er share, resulting in net proceeds to us of
$28.0 million. Also in July 2007, we entered intbicense agreement and a related stock purchaseragnt with Sigma under which we sol
Sigma 1.0 million shares of Sangamo’s common stadked at $8.55 million. In June 2006, in an undétan public offering and pursuant to
an effective registration statement, we sold 3400 shares of common stock at a public offeringepaf $6.75 per share, resulting in net
proceeds of approximately $20.2 million. In Novemb@05, we completed a registered direct offermmstitutional and strategic investors
a total of 5,080,000 shares of common stock atcz f $3.85 per share to the investors, resultimet proceeds to Sangamo of approximately
$18.2 million. To date, we have generated all otheenue from strategic partnering agreements, lifrggbechnology collaborations, federal
government research grants and grants awardedsbgneh foundations. As of December 31, 2007, weahaatcumulated deficit of
approximately $149.8 million. We expect to incusdes for the foreseeable future. These losseiaitase as we expand and extend our
research and development activities into humaragieartic product development. If the time requiedeénerate significant product revenues
and achieve profitability is longer than we curhg@inticipate or if we are unable to generate Ligtyithrough equity financing, we may not be
able to sustain our operations.

We may be unable to raise additional capital, whiglould harm our ability to develop our technology@ products.

We have incurred significant operating losses aghtive operating cash flows since inception ane mt achieved profitability. We
expect capital outlays and operating expenditurésdrease over the next several years as we expandfrastructure and research and ZFP
Therapeutic product development activities. Whikelvelieve our financial resources will be adeqt@atgustain our current operations at least
through 2009, we may seek additional sources dfalagprough equity or debt financing. In additias we focus our efforts on proprietary
human therapeutics, we will need to seek FDA apgdrof/potential products, a process that could toekcess of $100 million per product.
We cannot be certain that we will be able to obtaiancing on terms acceptable to us, or at alkdiéquate funds are not available, our busi
and our ability to develop our technology and ZHerRpeutic products would be harmed.
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Our stock price has been volatile and may contirteebe volatile, which could result in substantiaddses for investors.

During the past two years, our common stock pracefluctuated significantly, ranging from a low&§.22 to a high of $19.08 during the
year ended December 31, 2007, and a low of $4.&thigh of $8.00 during the year ended Decembe2@06. Volatility in our common stoc
could cause stockholders to incur substantial bs&e active public market for our common stock may be sustained, and the market pric
our common stock may continue to be highly volafilee market price of our common stock has fluedaignificantly in response to the
following factors, some of which are beyond ourtcoln

. announcements by us or future partners providirdatgs on the progress or development status ofTiEPapeutics
. data from clinical trials

. changes in market valuations of similar compar

. deviations in our results of operations from th&gnce given by us or estimates of securities aits|

. announcements by us or our competitors of new baeced products, technologies or services or stgmif contracts, acquisitions,
strategic relationships, joint ventures or cagitahmitments

. regulatory development
. additions or departures of key personi

. future sales of our common stock or other secgrliiethe Company, management or directors, ligigdatf institutional funds that
comprised large holdings of Sangamo stock;

. decreases in our cash balant

Our common stock is relatively thinly traded, whicheans large transactions in our common stock maydifficult to conduct in a
short time frame,

We have a relatively low volume of daily tradeour common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market. kample, the average daily
trading volume in our common stock on the Nasdazp&llMarket over the ten-day trading period primFebruary 1, 2008 was approximately
466,818 shares per day. Any large transactionsiirtommon stock may be difficult to conduct and roayse significant fluctuations in the
price of our common stock.

Because it is difficult and costly to protect ourgprietary rights, and third parties have filed pat applications that are similar to
ours, we cannot ensure the proprietary protectiohowr technologies and products.

Our commercial success will depend in part on olbtgi patent protection of our technology and susftdly defending any of our pater
that may be challenged. The patent positions ofpheeutical and biotechnology companies can behhigicertain and can involve complex
legal and factual questions. No consistent polegarding the breadth of claims allowed in biotedbgy patents has emerged to date.
Accordingly, we cannot predict the breadth of ckiaiowed in patents we own or license.

We are a party to various license agreements thatug rights under specified patents and pateplicgtions. Our current licenses, as
future licenses frequently will, contain performarabligations. If we fail to meet those obligatiptie licenses could be terminated. If we are
unable to continue to license these technologiesoommercially reasonable terms, or at all, we majdoced to delay or terminate our product
development and research activities.

With respect to our present and any future subsiesnsince our rights derive from those grantemlitcsublicensor, we are subject to the
risk that our sublicensor may fail to perform itdigations under the master license or fail to infais of useful improvements in, or additions
to, the underlying intellectual property owned hg priginal licensor.
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We are unable to exercise the same degree of toviointellectual property that we license framrd parties as we exercise over our
internally developed intellectual property. We di control the prosecution of certain of the pasglications that we license from third
parties; therefore, the patent applications maybegbrosecuted exactly as we desire or in a tirmglginer.

The degree of future protection for our proprietagits is uncertain, and we cannot ensure that:

. we or our licensors were the first to make the imioas covered by each of our pending patent aaiidios;
. we or our licensors were the first to file patepplications for these invention

. the patents of others will not have an adverseceffe our ability to do busines

. others will not independently develop similar deahative technologies or reverse engineer anyopooducts, processes
technologies

. any of our pending patent applications will resalissued patent:

. any patents issued or licensed to us or our caldbrs or strategic partners will provide a basiscommercially viable products
will provide us with any competitive advantag

. any patents issued or licensed to us will not dlehged and invalidated by third parties
. we will develop additional products, processeschhologies that are patentat

Others have filed and in the future are likelyite patent applications that are similar to our® 8ve aware that there are academic g1
and other companies that are attempting to devteldmology that is based on the use of zinc firmger other DNA-binding proteins, and that
these groups and companies have filed patent apiplis. Several patents have been issued, altheadtave no current plans to use the
associated inventions. If these or other patestseisit is possible that the holder of any pateqtadents granted on these applications may
an infringement action against our collaboratatrsitegic partners, or us claiming damages and sge&ienjoin commercial activities relating
to the affected products and processes. The cbktigating the claim could be substantial. Moreoywe cannot predict whether we, our
collaborators, or strategic partners would prewvaéiny actions. In addition, if the relevant patelaims were upheld as valid and enforceable
and our products or processes were found to irdrthg patent or patents, we could be prevented finaking, using, or selling the relevant
product or process unless we could obtain a licenseere able to design around the patent claimesceh give no assurance that such a lic
would be available on commercially reasonable teonat all, or that we would be able to succesgfigsign around the relevant patent
claims. There may be significant litigation in tenomics industry regarding patent and other extallal property rights, which could subject
us to litigation. If we become involved in litigati, it could consume a substantial portion of oanagerial and financial resources.

We cannot guarantee that third parties will notlelnge our intellectual property. One of our inelitsed foreign patents, licensed to
Sangamo from Johns Hopkins University which forhesbasis for five European Regional Phase pateassheen revoked as a result of an
opposition by a third party. Our licensor, The JoRopkins University, appealed the revocation huApril 2007, the European Technical
Board of Appeal released its decision dismissimgappeal. This outcome may limit our ability to lexie potential competitors in the field of
targeted recombination and gene correction in Eitng does not affect our ability to practice argeted recombination and gene correction
programs in Europe. Moreover, we also hold licetgesx US patents to the technology covered byofhyigosed European patent, and hold
licenses to related applications pending in CarsadbJapan. As of January 25, 2008, US patent ninifgs,792,640 and US6,265,196,
licensed to Sangamo from The Johns Hopkins Unityensiere undergoing re-examination, and we do motkwhat the outcome of the
process will be.

We rely on trade secrets to protect technology we/her believe patent protection is not appropriatebtainable. Trade secrets, however,
are difficult to protect. While we require emplogeacademic collaborators, and consultants to émteconfidentiality agreements, we may
not be able to adequately protect our trade seoraither proprietary information or enforce thesafidentiality agreements.
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Our collaborators, strategic partners, and scierdivisors have rights to publish data and infdromain which we may have rights. If v
cannot maintain the confidentiality of our techrgpiand other confidential information in connectigith our collaborations and strategic
partnerships, then we may not be able to receitenparotection or protect our proprietary inforinat

Failure to attract, retain, and motivate skilled pgonnel and cultivate key academic collaborationglhdelay our product development
programs and our research and development effo

We are a small company with 83 full-time employas®f February 1, 2008 and our success dependsraontinued ability to attract,
retain, and motivate highly qualified management seientific personnel and our ability to develoypl anaintain important relationships with
leading research and academic institutions anchsie. Competition for personnel and academicathdr research collaborations is intense.
The success of our technology development progciepends on our ability to attract and retain highdyned personnel. We have experienced
a rate of employee turnover that we believe isdgidf emerging biotechnology companies. If we ldeeservices of personnel with the
necessary skills, it could significantly impede #uhievement of our research and development abgsciWe are not presently aware of any
plans of specific employees to retire or otherniéseve the company. If we fail to negotiate adddiloacceptable collaborations with academic
and other research institutions and scientist#,arr existing collaborations are unsuccessfut, 0bP Therapeutic development programs may
be delayed or may not succeed.

If conflicts arise between us and our collaboratoisrategic partners, scientific advisors, or ditecs, these parties may act in their
self-interest, which may limit our ability to implemerdur strategies.

If conflicts arise between our corporate or acadetollaborators, strategic partners, or scienéfigisors or directors and us, the other
party may act in its self-interest, which may limitr ability to implement our strategies. Some wf academic collaborators and strategic
partners are conducting multiple product developgre#iorts within each area that is the subjecthef¢ollaboration with us. Our collaborators
or strategic partners, however, may develop, egl@are or with others, products in related fielisttare competitive with the products or
potential products that are the subject of thedalmarations. Competing products, either develdmpgthe collaborators or strategic partners or
to which the collaborators or strategic partnengeh@ghts, may result in the withdrawal of partsapport for our product candidates.

Some of our collaborators or strategic partnerdccalso become competitors in the future. Our tmltators or strategic partners could
develop competing products, preclude us from emgdrito collaborations with their competitors, fimilobtain timely regulatory approvals,
terminate their agreements with us prematurelyaibto devote sufficient resources to the develeptrand commercialization of products. /
of these developments could harm our product deveémt efforts.

If we do not successfully commercialize ZFP basedearch reagents under our license agreement wign&-Aldrich Corporation, or
if Sigma terminates our agreement, our ability tegerate revenue under the license agreement maiirbited.

On July 10, 2007, we entered into a license agraemith Sigma to collaborate in the application aledelopment of ZFP-based
products for use in the laboratory research reagaarkets. The license agreement provides Signtaagitess to Sangamo’s ZFP technology
and the exclusive right to use Sangamo’s ZFP tdolggdo develop and commercialize products for aseesearch reagents and to offer
services in related research fields. In additioariaipfront payment of $13.5 million, Sangamo mlap aeceive additional license fees, shared
sublicensing revenues, royalty payments and miespayments depending on the success of the denefd@nd commercialization of the
licensed products and services. The commerciakinitees and royalties are based upon net salaseoflkd products. We believe that the last
commercial milestone payment may not be receivéor®®011. Our right to receive royalty paymentsrirSigma will continue until the later
of (i) the expiration of the last to expire valihien of such licensed product and (ii) the 15thiaersary of the effective date of the License
Agreement. We cannot be certain that Sigma andé&aogvill succeed in the
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development of commercially viable products in théields of use, and there is no guarantee thag@aao and Sigma will achieve the
milestones set forth in the license agreementh&aektent Sangamo and Sigma do not succeed inagewvgland commercializing products or
if Sangamo and Sigma fail to achieve such milestpaer revenues and benefits under the licenseagmat will be limited. In addition, the
license agreement may be terminated by Sigma atimeyby providing us with a 90-day notice. In aent Sigma decides to terminate the
license agreement, our ability to generate revemaer the license agreement will cease.

If we do not successfully commercialize certain ZHBRerapeutic programs relating to diabetic neuropgtunder our agreement with
JDRF, JDRF may have the right to continue to advanthe program and we may lose control of the intellual property generated in the
collaboration and development of the product and ynanly receive a portion of the revenue generateddammercialization by JDRF is
successful

On October 24, 2006, we entered into a Researclelbgment and Commercialization Agreement with JDBRder the agreement and
subject to its terms and conditions, including acinievement of certain milestones associated witiPtiase 2 clinical trial of SB-509 (SB-509-
601) for the treatment of diabetic neuropathy, JDRE paid us a total of $2.5 million through Decentil, 2007. We are obligated to cover
the costs of the Phase 2 trial that are not covieyetDRF's grant.

Under the agreement, we are obligated to use coamafigireasonable efforts to carry out the PhasgaRand, thereafter, to develop and
commercialize, a product containing SB-509 fortteatment of diabetes and complications of diabédtege fail to satisfy these obligations,
JDRF may have the right, subject to certain lingtad, to obtain an exclusive, sublicensable liceteséhe intellectual property generated by us
in the course of the Phase 2 trial, to make andhteraialize products containing SB-509 for the et of diabetes and complications of
diabetes. If JDRF obtains such a license, it iggaliéd to pay us a percentage of its revenues frauct sales and sublicensing arrangements.
If JIDRF fails to satisfy its obligations to develapd commercialize a product containing SB-509 utiie Agreement, then their license rights
will terminate and we will receive a non-exclusifd]y paid license, for any intellectual propedsgveloped during JDRF’s use of the license,
to research, develop and commercialize productiagong SB-509 for the treatment of diabetes andmications of diabetes. There is no
guarantee that we will be successful in commemiiai a product containing SB-509 in the futurew# fail to do so under the agreement with
JDRF, we may lose control of the intellectual pmypgenerated in the development of the productraag only receive a portion of the
revenue generated if commercialization by JDRRiczassful.

Regulatory approval, if granted, may be limitedgpecific uses or geographic areas, which could limir ability to generate revenues.

Regulatory approval will be limited to the indicdtese for which we can market a product. Furtheceaegulatory approval for a prod
is obtained, the product and its manufacturer abgest to continual review. Discovery of previousiyknown problems with a product or
manufacturer may result in restrictions on the poddmanufacturer, and manufacturing facility, idihg withdrawal of the product from the
market. In Japan and Europe, regulatory agencéessait or approve prices.

Even if regulatory clearance of a product is grdntkis clearance is limited to those specificesatnd conditions for which the produc
useful, as demonstrated through clinical trials. d&enot ensure that any ZFP Therapeutic productidped by us, alone or with others, will
prove to be safe and effective in clinical triatglavill meet all of the applicable regulatory reguments needed to receive marketing clearance
in a given country.

Outside the United States, our ability to markpt@duct is contingent upon receiving a marketintharization from the appropriate
regulatory authorities, so we cannot predict whetimevhen we would be permitted to commercialize moduct. These foreign regulatory
approval processes include all of the risks assettiaith FDA clearance described above.
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Our collaborations with outside scientists may hégect to change, which could limit our access teetr expertise.

We work with scientific advisors and collaboratatsicademic research institutions. These sciemtistaot our employees and may have
other commitments that would limit their availatyilto us. Although our scientific advisors generafjree not to do competing work, if a
conflict of interest between their work for us ahdir work for another entity arises, we may |dseirtservices. Although our scientific advis
and academic collaborators sign agreements nas¢tode our confidential information, it is possitthat some of our valuable proprietary
knowledge may become publicly known through them.

Laws or public sentiment may limit the productiorf genetically modified agricultural products in th&uture, and these laws could
reduce our partner’s ability to sell these products

Genetically modified products are currently subjegpublic debate and heightened regulatory soyuéither of which could prevent or
delay production of agricultural products. Effeetias of October 1, 2005, we entered into a Res¢arehse and Commercial Option
Agreement with DAS. Under this agreement, we witlyide DAS with access to our proprietary ZFP tetbgy and the exclusive right to use
our ZFP technology to modify the genomes or ahierriucleic acid or protein expression of plantszgdlants, or plant cell cultures. The field-
testing, production, and marketing of geneticallydified plants and plant products are subject defal, state, local, and foreign governmental
regulation. Regulatory agencies administering exgsor future regulations or legislation may ndba production and marketing of our
genetically modified products in a timely manneuader technically or commercially feasible coratis. In addition, regulatory action or
private litigation could result in expenses, deJaysother impediments to our product developmeog@ms or the commercialization of
resulting products.

The FDA currently applies the same regulatory staaslto foods developed through genetic engine@sntose applied to foods
developed through traditional plant breeding. Giea#ly engineered food products, however, will bbject to pre-market review if these
products raise safety questions or are deemed fimoldeadditives. Governmental authorities coul@afer social or other purposes, limit the
use of genetically modified products created with gene regulation technology.

Even if we are able to obtain regulatory approwealgenetically modified products, our success aldb depend on public acceptance of
the use of genetically modified products includiirggs, plants, and plant products. Claims that geally modified products are unsafe for
consumption or pose a danger to the environmentinilayence public attitudes. Our genetically moelifiproducts may not gain public
acceptance. The subject of genetically modifiechnigms has received negative publicity in the Uh8¢ates and particularly in Europe, and
such publicity has aroused public debate. The agveublicity in Europe could lead to greater retjolaand trade restrictions on imports of
genetically altered products. Similar adverse mutdaction in the United States to genetic reseanchits resulting products could result in
greater domestic regulation and could decreasddhmeand for our technology and products.

If we use biological and hazardous materials in @ammer that causes injury or violates laws, we magylable for damages.

Our research and development activities involvecth@rolled use of potentially harmful biologicahterials as well as hazardous
materials, chemicals, and various radioactive camgs typically employed in molecular and celluladgy. We routinely use cells in culture
and gene delivery vectors, and we employ small ansoof radioisotopes in trace experiments. Althowghmaintain up-to-date licensing and
training programs, we cannot completely eliminaeisk of accidental contamination or injury froine use, storage, handling, or disposal of
these materials. In the event of contaminatiompry, we could be held liable for damages thatiliteand any liability could exceed our
resources. We currently carry insurance coveringrd arising from our use of these materials. Haxgif we are unable to maintain our
insurance coverage at a reasonable cost and wétjuate coverage, our insurance may not cover ahiity that may arise. We are subject to
federal, state, and local laws and regulations gong the use, storage, handling, and disposdiedd materials and specified waste products.
To date, we have not experienced significant dostemplying with regulations regarding the usehase materials.
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Anti-takeover provisions in our certificate of incorpatian and Delaware law could make an acquisition e Company more difficul
and could prevent attempts by our stockholderseaove or replace current management.

Anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law and in ourifiedte of incorporation and our bylaws may disame, delay or prevent a chal
in control of our company, even if a change in contould be beneficial to our stockholders. In didd, these provisions may frustrate or
prevent any attempts by our stockholders to reptecemove our current management by making it nadfieult for stockholders to replace
members of our board of directors. In particulamgler our certificate of incorporation our boarddotctors may issue up to 5,000,000 share
preferred stock with rights and privileges that ige senior to our common stock, without the coheéthe holders of the common stock.
Moreover, without any further vote or action on tiat of the stockholders, the board of directoosid have the authority to determine the
price, rights, preferences, privileges, and rettms of the preferred stock. This preferred stafci,is ever issued, may have preference over,
and harm the rights of, the holders of common stédthough the issuance of this preferred stock iquovide us with flexibility in
connection with possible acquisitions and othepomate purposes, this issuance may make it mdiieuiffor a third party to acquire a
majority of our outstanding voting stock. Similgrtyur authorized but unissued common stock is alklfor future issuance without
stockholder approval.

In addition, our bylaws:
. state that stockholders may not act by written enhbut only at a stockhold’ meeting;

. establish advance notice requirements for nominatior election to the board of directors or prapgsnatters that can be acl
upon at stockholde’ meetings; an

. limit who may call a special meeting of stockhokl
We are also subject to Section 203 of the Delavmeeral Corporation Law, which provides, subjeatddain exceptions, that if a

person acquires 15% of our voting stock, the peisam “interested stockholder” and may not engagbusiness combinations” with us for a
period of three years from the time the person medu 5% or more or our voting stock.

Insiders have control over Sangamo and could detayprevent a change in corporate control.

The interest of management could conflict withititerest of our other stockholders. Our executiffieers and directors beneficially
own, in the aggregate, approximately 14% of oustaumding common stock as of February 1, 2008. Aesalt, these stockholders, if they
choose to act together, may have a material impaell matters requiring stockholder approval, uiihg the election of directors and apprc
of significant corporate transactions. This coudddthe effect of delaying or preventing a charfgenatrol of Sangamo, which in turn could
reduce the market price of our stock.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.

Item 2. Properties
We currently lease approximately 27,000 squaredesgsearch and office space located at 501 (GBmalevard in Richmond, Californi.
The lease expires in August of 2014. We believé dacilities are sufficient for the foreseeableufiet

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:
We are not a party to any material legal proceeding

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market for the Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securiti¢

Our common stock has traded on the Nasdaq Globeke¥ldnc. under the symbol “SGMO” since our inlifpaublic offering on April 6,
2000.

The high and low closing prices of our common stfmleach quarterly period during the last twodisgears as reported by the
NASDAQ Global Market, Inc. were as follows:

Common Stock

Price
High Low

Year ended December 31, 2C

First Quarte! $ 6.6¢ $ 4.1C

Second Quarte $ 772 $ 4.5¢

Third Quartel $ 6.12 $ 4.3¢

Fourth Quarte $ 8.0C $ 4.92
Year ended December 31, 2C

First Quartel $ 8.8t $ 6.22

Second Quarte $ 8.54 $ 6.57

Third Quartel $14.11 $ 8.3¢

Fourth Quarte $19.0¢ $12.3¢

Holders

As of February 22, 2008, there were approximat@iy@lders of record of Sangamo’s common stock. mhisber does not include
“street name” or beneficial holders, whose sharesald of record by banks, brokers and other fir@rnnstitutions.

Dividends

Sangamo has not paid dividends on its common stakcurrently does not plan to pay any cash didden the foreseeable future.
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Stock Trading Plans

From time to time our directors, executive officargl other insiders may adopt stock trading plamsyant to Rule 10b5-1 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Tilass are established to allow individuals to déifgrtheir investment portfolio while
avoiding conflicts of interest or the appearancargf such conflict that might arise from their piogis with the company. Starting in the first
quarter of 2002, four of our officers, includingugard O. Lanphier II, President and CEO, and twouwfdirectors have made periodic sales of
the Company’s stock pursuant to such plans.

Stock Performance Graph

COMPARISON OF SYEAR CUMULATIVETOTAL RETURN*

Among Sangama Biosciences, Inc., The NASDAQ Compasite Index
And The NASDACQ Biotechnology Inces
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—&— Sangamo Biosciences, Inc. — ©&— NASDAQ Composite - - & - -NASDAQ Biotechnology

* This comparison is based on return assuming $1@&sted on December 31, 2002 in stock or indesyraing reinvestment of all dividends.
Fiscal year ending December .

The above Stock Performance Graph and relatedimftion shall not be deemed “soliciting material” twr be “filed” with the Securitie
and Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatiemcorporated by reference into any future fjlimder the Securities Act of 1933 or
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amendedpeto the extent that the Company specificattpiiporates it by reference into such
filing.

37



Table of Contents

ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following Selected Financial Data should bedr@aconjunction with “Iltem 7. Management’s Disciessand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and “Iltem BiaRcial Statements and Supplementary Data” indwdgewhere in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Statement of Operations Data:
Total revenue
Operating expense
Research and developm
General and administrati\
Total operating expens
Loss from operation
Interest income, ne
Other income / (expens
Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per common sl
Shares used in computing basic and diluted netdessommon shai

Allocation of Stock-Based Compensation to Operating Expense
Research and developmt
General and administrati\

Total stocl-based compensatic

Balance Sheet Data

Cash, cash equivalents, marketable securitiesinaek st receivabl
Working capital

Total asset

Accumulated defici

Total stockholder equity
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Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share date
$ 9,09¢ $ 7,88t $ 2,48¢ $ 1,31f $ 2,57¢
25,55¢ 21,52; 10,90¢ 11,18¢ 9,937
8,31( 7,08 5,32 4,781 4,411
33,86¢ 28,61« 16,23 15,96¢ 14,34¢
(24,777 (20,729 (13,749 (14,650 (11,769
3,217 2,411 85C 62C 752
74 454 (395) 212 584
$ (21,480 $ (17,869 $ (13,299  $(13,818)  $(10,43)
$ (056 $ (055 $ (051) $ (055 $ (0.42)
37,358 32,50z 25,85t 25,12¢ 24,81
Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
$ 1,44t $ 1,22¢ $ 30C $ 64¢ $ 451
98¢ 787 1 14 11€
$ 2,43¢ $ 2,01¢ $ 301 $ 668 $ 567
As of December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

$ 81,41 $ 53,97t $ 47,17¢ $ 33,52( $ 44,34:
72,43 49,85¢ 41,66¢ 32,02¢ 43,71¢
83,90( 55,78( 48,98: 34,72t 46,23:
(149,75)  (128,27) (110,409 (97,119  (83,29)
72,12 48,70¢ 37,81« 32,37 44,66
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ltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drikResults of Operation

The discussion in “Management’s Discussion and ysialof Financial Condition and Results of Operadiocontains trend analysis,
estimates and other forward-looking statementsiwitie meaning of Section 27A of the Securities 8fc1933, as amended, and Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenteese forward-looking statements include, witHouitation, statements containing the
words “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “contia,” and other words of similar import or the négabf those terms or expressions. Such
forward-looking statements are subject to known @amkhown risks, uncertainties, estimates and ddwtors that may cause the actual results,
performance or achievements of the Company, orsingduesults, to be materially different from amyure results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forwao#lihg statements. Actual results could differ matly from those set forth in such
forward-looking statements as a result of, butlimaited to, the “Risk Factors” described in Partém 1A. You should read the following
discussion and analysis along with the “Selecte@mgial Data” and the financial statements andsateched to those statements included
elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We were incorporated in June 1995. From our inceptirough December 31, 2007, our activities relgemarily to establishing and
operating a biotechnology research and developorgahization and developing relationships with canporate collaborators. Our scientific
and business development endeavors currently foctise engineering of novel zinc finger DNbdading proteins (ZFPs) for the regulation i
modification of genes. We have incurred net lossese inception and expect to incur losses in tiré as we continue our research and
development activities. To date, we have fundedoperations primarily through the issuance of ggsécurities, borrowings, payments from
research grants and from corporate collaboratatstategic partners. As of December 31, 2007, ageam accumulated deficit of
$149.8 million.

Our revenues have consisted primarily of reventas bur corporate partners for ZFP TFs and ZFNstrectual payments from
strategic partners for research programs and reseaitestones, and research grant funding. We éxpeenues will continue to fluctuate from
period to period and there can be no assurancedwatollaborations or partner fundings will congnbeyond their initial terms.

We have continued to place more emphasis on higdlee therapeutic product development and relatadegic partnerships and less
emphasis on our Enabling Technology collaboratidie.believe this shift in emphasis has the potktdiancrease the return on investment to
our stockholders by allocating capital resourcesigher value, therapeutic product developmenviets. At the same time, it may reduce our
revenues over the next several years and subjeothigher financial risk by increasing expenseamted with product development. We
filed an Investigational New Drug (IND) applicatianth the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA)dahave initiated three Phase 2
clinical trial of a ZFP Therapeutic in patients lwiiabetic neuropathy. Development of novel thewéipgoroducts is costly and is subject to a
lengthy and uncertain regulatory process by the FDér future products are gene-based therapeudtiberse events in both our own clinical
program and other programs may have a negativecngueregulatory approval, the willingness of pot@rcommercial partners to enter into
agreements and the perception of the public.

Research and development expenses consist prinrofshiaries and related personnel expenses, mieatland clinical studies,
laboratory supplies, stodkased compensation expenses, allocated faciliigts csubcontracted research expenses, and expentsshnology
licenses. Research and development costs incurrezhinection with collaborator-funded activities axpensed as incurred. Costs to acquire
technologies that are utilized in research and ldpmeent and that have no alternative future useegpensed as incurred. We believe that
continued investment in research and developmasritisal to attaining our strategic objectives. \@gect these expenses will increase
significantly as we focus increasingly on developtref ZFP Therapeutics. Additionally, in order tevélop ZFP TFs and ZFNs as
commercially relevant therapeutics, we expect fmeexi additional resources for expertise in the rfaaturing, regulatory affairs and clinical
research aspects of biotherapeutic development.
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General and administrative expenses consist priynafrsalaries and related personnel expenses<gugive, finance and administrative
personnel, professional fees, patent prosecutipereses, allocated facilities costs and other génerporate expenses. As we pursue
commercial development of our therapeutic leadexpeect the business aspects of the Company to kenwre complex. We may be requi
in the future to add personnel and incur additiausits related to the maturity of our business.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiettthe reported amounts of assets and liaksligied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemesmsl the reported amounts of revenues and expduoseg the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Sangamo beli¢hvedollowing critical accounting policies reflettte more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our Cons@iiBinancial Statements.

Revenue Recognitio

In accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No410Revenue Recognition,” revenue from researclvidies made under strategic
partnering agreements and Enabling Technology lootitions is recognized as the services are prdvidesn there is persuasive evidence that
an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, tilce s fixed or determinable, and collectibilig/ieasonably assured. Amounts received in
advance under such agreements are deferred untbibve criteria are met and the research serareggerformed. Sangamo’s research grants
are typically multi-year agreements and providetlfier reimbursement of qualified expenses for reteand development as defined under the
terms of the grant agreement. Revenue under ggae¢ments is recognized when the related qualiisdarch expenses are incurred. Grant
reimbursements are typically received on a quarteakis and are subject to the issuing agencytd dfaudit.

Milestone payments under research, partneringceinsging agreements are recognized as revenuethpachievement of mutually
agreed upon milestones, provided that (i) the rles event is substantive and its achievementtissagonably assured at the inception of the
agreement, and (ii) there are no performance diiga associated with the milestone payment.

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force IsSsu®0-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple iDetables,” revenue
arrangements entered into after June 15, 2003jrttlade multiple deliverables, are divided intparate units of accounting if the deliverables
meet certain criteria, including whether the faitue of the delivered items can be determined dmether there is evidence of fair value of the
undelivered items. In addition, the considerat®allocated among the separate units of accoubtisgd on their fair values, and the applic
revenue recognition criterion is considered seprdior each of the separate units of accounting.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounteddpstock-based employee compensation arrangemedés the intrinsic value
method prescribed by Accounting Principles Boarih@m No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Emmeg (APB No. 25), as allowed by
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-based CompeosdisFAS No. 123), as amended by SFAS No. 148, éuirng for Stock-Based
Compensation—Transition and Disclosure (SFAS N@&)1As a result, no expense was recognized fooogtio purchase our common stock
that were granted with an exercise price equaditoniarket value at the date of grant prior to Zapd, 2006. In December 2004, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS M8. (tevised 2004) Share-Based Payment (SFAS Ndr)12&ich replaces
SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB No. 25. SFAS N8R t2quires all share-based payments to employessding grants of employee
stock options, to be recognized in the financiateshents based on their fair values. Subsequehéteffective date, the pro forma disclosures
previously permitted under SFAS No. 123 are no éoran alternative to financial
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statement recognition. Effective January 1, 2006,Gompany adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modifiegpective method. Under this
method, compensation cost recognized includexdpensation cost for all share-based paymentsegtamior to, but not yet vested as of
December 31, 2005, based on the grant-date faiewvedtimated in accordance with the original piowis of SFAS No. 123 amortized on an
accelerated basis over the options’ vesting pedad,(b) compensation cost for all share-based patsgranted subsequent to December 31,
2005, based on the grant-date fair value estimatadcordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123Rortized on a straight-line basis over
the options’ vesting period. Results for prior pels have not been restated.

During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 20®@ecognized stock-based compensation expenszohdllion and $2.0 million,
respectively, in operating expenses. As of DecerlhgR007, total compensation cost related to nstedestock options to be recognized in
future periods was $18.1 million, which is expedede expensed over a weighted-average period ofchths.

Results of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Total Revenues

Year Ended December 31,

0, 0,
2007 2006 Change Chzfnge 2006 2005 Change Chzfnge
(In thousands, except percentage value
Revenues
Collaboration agreemen $6,781 $6,62¢ $ 15€ 2%  $6,62F $1,832 $4,79: 262%
Research gran 2,31 1,26( 1,057 84% 1,26( 652 60€& 93%
Total revenue $9,09¢  $7,88F  $1,21: 15%  $7,88t $2,48/  $5,401 217%

We are increasing the emphasis of our researclil@velopment activities on ZFP Therapeutics. Eveh this change in resource
allocation, we anticipate increasing revenues tivemnext several years primarily related to ourddesh License and Commercial Option
Agreement with Dow AgroSciences LLC (“DAS"), a whobwned indirect subsidiary of Dow Chemical Corgtimn and our laboratory
research reagents license agreement with SigmaeAl@orporation.

Total revenues consisted of revenues from colldlmoragreements, strategic partnerships and rdsgaants. Revenues from our
corporate collaboration and strategic partnerimgagents were $6.8 million in 2007, compared t6 $Gillion in 2006 and $1.8 million in
2005. The increase in 2007 from 2006 was pringipatiributable to revenues of approximately $1.1liom in connection with our laboratory
research reagents license agreement with Sigmenuesg of $283,000 in connection with our reseanchliaense agreement with Genentech,
Inc. and increased revenues of $62,000 in conneetith our Research License and Commercial OptigreAment with DAS. This was
partially offset by decreased revenues from Pfizer of $651,000 and Johnson & Johnson of $600,088.increase in 2006 from 2005 was
principally attributable to increased revenuespyraximately $4.6 million in connection with our $&arch License and Commercial Option
Agreement with DAS and $235,000 in connection witin collaboration in the field of regenerative no#dé with LifeScan. Research grant
revenues were $2.3 million in 2007, $1.3 millior2@06 and $652,000 in 2005. The increase in 208% 2006 was primarily attributable to
increased revenues of $1.5 million related to sangwith the Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundatioh$397,000 related to our grant with
the Michael J. Fox Foundation. This was partiaffget by decreases in revenues of $635,000 in agimmewith our Advanced Technology
Program grant awarded by the National Institut8taindards and Technology, $144,000 in connectitim auir Cystic Fibrosis grant awarded
by the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation and $100,000imection with our ZFN-driven Gene Disruption of R&as a Potential Treatment of AIDS
grant awarded by the National Institutes of Headlthe increase in 2006 from 2005 was primarily bttrable to increased
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revenue of $456,000 in connection with our Advantedhnology Program grant awarded by the Natiomstitute of Standards and
Technology, $176,000 in connection with our Cystigrosis grant awarded by Cystic Fibrosis Foundasiod $100,000 in connection with our
ZFN-driven Gene Disruption of CCR5 as a Potentialiafment of AIDS grant awarded by the Nationalitasts of Health. These increases
were partially offset by decreased revenues of IBfrom our research grant associated with sicéle We plan to continue to apply for
research grants.

Operating Expenses

Year Ended December 31
% %
2007 2006 Change Change 2006 2005 Change Change
(In thousands, except percentage values)

Operating expense

Research and developmt $25,55¢ $21,527 $4,03: 19%  $21,527 $10,90¢ $10,61¢ 97%
General and administrati\ 8,31( 7,081 1,22: 17% 7,087 5,32: 1,764 33%
Total operating expens $33,86¢ $28,61¢  $5,25¢ 18%  $28,61¢ $16,23: $12,38: 76%

Research and development expel

Research and development expenses have consistetifyr of salaries and related personnel expersesk-based compensation
expense, laboratory supplies, pre-clinical andadinstudies, allocated facilities costs, subcaried research expenses and expenses for
trademark registration and technology licenses eWfect to continue to devote substantial resourcessearch and development in the future
and expect research and development expenses¢asecin the next several years if we are sucdessdidvancing our ZFP Therapeutic
product candidates into clinical trials. To theaesttwe collaborate with others with respect toichhtrials, increases in research and
development expenses may be reduced or avoided.

Research and development expenses were $25.6miill2007, compared to $21.5 million in 2006 an@.9Imillion in 2005. The
increase of $4.0 million in 2007 from 2006 was pifrally due to increased expenses related to @lretiic neuropathy clinical studies of
$4.0 million, salaries and benefits of $1.6 milligme-clinical studies of $1.1 million, drug prodien costs associated with our ongoing and
planned clinical studies of $1.1 million, laboratesupplies of $512,000, facilities of $469,000 atatk-based compensation of $219,000. This
was partially offset by decreased licensing expeé&5.3 million, primarily associated with thedBOacquisition of all assets in Edward$P
therapeutic angiogenesis program valued at $5/8milThe increase of $10.6 million in 2006 fromO0B0was principally due to increased
expenses associated with the acquisition of aitasa Edwards’ ZFP therapeutic angiogenesis prograued at $5.8 million, $1.2 million of
stock-based compensation due to adoption of SFASLRRR, increased expenses for laboratory suppfiapproximately $1.1 million,
increased expenses associated with diabetic nehsopalated clinical studies of $1.1 million, ineseed expenses for salaries and related
benefits of $963,000 due to increased headcowreased consulting expenses of approximately $8920d increased expenses associated
with pre-clinical studies of $135,000.

Our current research and development program®atséd on the advancement of our ZFP TF techndtwggeveral potential
applications. Among these are ZFP Therapeuticedarological disorders, cardiovascular disease;araand monogenic diseases, ZFP-
engineered cell lines, protein production and ZFA8 @&nd ZFNs for applications in agricultural bidtealogy.
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Below is a summary of our programs partially funtgccollaborators and the development phase ditding application:

Program Collaborator Stage
ZFP technology to modify the genomes or alter tloggin expression of plant cells, plai  Dow AgroScience Researcl
or plant cell culture
ZFP technology for high value laboratory reseasdgents Sigma-Aldrich Research/Marketing
Corporation
ZFF-engineered cell lines for the manufacture of propFiarmaceutical Genentech, Inc Research/Marketin
ZFF-engineered cell lines for the manufacture of propgiarmaceutical Pfizer Inc. Research/Marketin

Below is a summary of our programs funded inteynaiid the development stage of the leading apicat

Internal Programs

Program Stage
ZFP Therapeutic Clinical/Preclinical/Researc
ZFP TF-engineered cell lines for the manufacture of profarmaceutical Researcl

Due to the early stage of our various internalaese and development projects, we do not tracksasdociated with our internal projects
on a project-byproject basis. Drug development is inherently uta@erand the successful completion of our develagmeograms is subject
numerous technological challenges and risks andameot presently estimate anticipated completidasdfor any of our programs. Material
cash inflows associated with the sale of produt&s)y, which result from our research efforts ao¢ expected for at least five years. See Risk
Factors—"Our potential therapeutic products are subject tieregthy and uncertain regulatory process, anthése potential products are not
approved, we will not be able to commercialize ¢heoducts” and “Our gene regulation technologyrédatively new, and if we are unable to
use this technology in all our intended applicaipit would limit our revenue opportuniti€'s

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses consist priynafrsalaries and related personnel expenses<ggugive, finance and administrative
personnel, stock-based compensation expensessgpiaial fees, allocated facilities costs, expefsegatent prosecution and other general
corporate expenses. As we pursue commercial davelopof our therapeutic leads, we expect the basiaspects of the Company to become
more complex. We may be required in the futureda personnel and incur additional costs relateti¢anaturity of our business.

General and administrative expenses were $8.3omitluring 2007, $7.1 million in 2006 and $5.3 roifliin 2005. The increase of $1.2
million during 2007 was principally due to incredgeofessional services expenses of $719,000, phinmatent-prosecution and general
corporate legal related, salaries and benefit202$00 and stock-based compensation of $201,0@0inErease of $1.8 million in 2006 was
principally due to increased professional servieqgenses of approximately $961,000, primarily papeosecution-related, and $787,000
related to stock-based compensation due to thetiadapf SFAS No. 123R.
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Interest income, ne

Year Ended December 31

% %
2007 2006 Change Change 2006 2005 Change Change
(In thousands, except percentage value
Interest income, ne $3,217 $2,411 $ 80¢ 33% $2,411 $85C $1,561 184%

Net interest income was $3.2 million in 2007, anpared to $2.4 million in 2006, and $850,000 in200he increase of $806,000 in
2007 from 2006 was primarily related to higher iatt income earned on higher average cash andinersbalances from the July 2007
equity financing. The increase of $1.6 million BB from 2005 was primarily related to higher iestrincome earned on higher average cash
and investment balances from the June 2006 eqnépnding.

Other income/(expense)

Year Ended December 31,
% %
2007 2006 Change Change 2006 2005 Change Change
(In thousands, except percentage values)

Other income/(expens $74 $454 $(380) (84)% $454 $(395) $ 84c¢ 215%

Other income / (expense) is primarily comprisedoogign currency translation gain / loss relateth® cash balance held by our foreign
subsidiary in the United Kingdom.

During 2007, other income of $74,000 was comprisfea net gain on foreign currency translation. Bgr2006, other income of
$454,000 was principally comprised of a net gaiffaraign currency translation. During 2005, othgpense of $395,000 was comprised of a
net loss on foreign currency translation of $378,80d other than temporary loss on our marketadergies of $21,000.

We incurred net operating losses in 2007, 2006284, and consequently did not pay any federalate sncome taxes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since inception, we have financed our operatiomaanily through the sale of equity securities, payts from corporate collaborators,
research grants and financing activities suchlzen line of credit. As of December 31, 2007, we bash, cash equivalents, investments and
interest receivable totaling $81.4 million.

Net cash used in operating activities was $16.1ianiin 2007, $14.5 million in 2006, and $4.0 mati in 2005. In all periods, net cash
used in operating activities was primarily dueunding of net operating losses. During 2007, theeafscash related to our net operating loss of
$21.5 million was partially offset by net non-castarges of $745,000 and changes in operating emsettabilities of $4.8 million. Non-cash
charges include $2.4 million related to stock-basmupensation, depreciation and amortization o#$2J0 and realized losses on investments
of $181,000. This was partially offset by net arization of premium / discount on marketable se@siof $2.1 million. The net increase in
operating liabilities was principally comprisedin€reases in deferred revenues of $2.6 millionagswbunts payable and accrued liabilities of
$1.8 million. During 2006, the use of cash relat®dur net operating loss of $17.9 million and ajesin operating assets and liabilities of ¢
million, partially offset by net non-cash chargé$d.1 million. Non-cash charges include $5.8 riilrelated to issuance of common stock for
Edwards’ asset purchase, $2.0 million relateddoksbased compensation, depreciation of $171,08apw offset by amortization of
premium / discount on marketable securities of $8807. The net decreases in operating liabilitiesnaainly attributable to decreases in
deferred revenues of $4.2 million partially offbgtnet decreases in asset balances of $370,00lhg2005,
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the use of cash related to our net operating [6$4®.3 million partially offset by net non-cashacbes of $810,000 and changes in operating
assets and liabilities of $8.4 million. Non-caslagjes include amortization of premium / discountarketable securities of $214,000, stock-
based compensation expenses of $301,000 and deeaf $274,000. The net increases in operatatijlities of $8.8 million is principally
due to an increase in deferred revenue of $7.8amjlprimarily related to the receipt of a licemmeyment of $7.5 million during the fourth
guarter of 2005 in connection with our Researclehse and Commercial Option Agreement with DAS.

Net cash used in investing activities was $26.8ianilin 2007, $12.2 million in 2006 and $4.4 mitian 2005. Cash used during these
periods was comprised of purchases of marketableries and property and equipment and was prodiset by maturities of marketable
securities.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $48iBion in 2007, $20.9 million in 2006 and $18.4llion in 2005. In July 2007, the
company completed a registered direct offeringtitutional and strategic investors for a totaBg78,689 shares of common stock at a price
of $9.15 per share to the investors, resultingeinpnoceeds to Sangamo of approximately $28.0anillin July 2007, pursuant to a laboratory
research reagents license agreement with Sigmapthpany issued one million shares of common statiked at $8.55 per share to Sigma,
resulting in proceeds of $8.6 million. In June 20@6an underwritten public offering and pursuananh effective registration statement, we
3,100,000 shares of common stock at a public effeprice of $6.75 per share, resulting in net pedseof approximately $20.2 million after
deducting underwriter’s discount. During 2005, teenpany completed a registered direct offeringn&itutional and strategic investors for a
total of 5,080,000 shares of common stock at ae@fc$3.85 per share to the investors, resultimeinproceeds to Sangamo of approximately
$18.2 million. In October 2005, pursuant to a resledicense and commercial option agreement wittSD#e company issued one million
shares of common stock valued at $3.85 per shdd&&) resulting in proceeds of $3.9 million. Allhetr cash provided by financing activities
for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was related to proceedas fssuance of common stock related to stock optoescises.

While we expect our rate of cash usage to incriaee future, in particular, to support our protddevelopment endeavors, we believe
that the available cash resources, funds receiomd €orporate collaborators, strategic partnersrasdarch grants will be sufficient to finance
our operations through 2009. We may need to raldéianal capital to fund our ZFP Therapeutic depahent activities. Additional capital
may not be available in terms acceptable to uat afl. If adequate funds are not available, owitess and our ability to develop our
technology and our ZFP Therapeutic products woeltdrmed.

There is no provision for income taxes because ave Incurred losses. As of December 31, 2007, Saodead net operating loss
carryforwards for federal income tax purposes gragimately $96.6 million, which expire in the ye&010 through 2027. The Company also
has state net operating loss carryforwards of aqmately $72.0 million, which expire in the yea®d8 through 2017. The Company also has
federal and state research tax credit carryforwafd.9 million and $1.9 million, respectively. &lfiederal research credits will begin to ex
in the year 2018 through 2027 and the state relseaedits have no expiration date. Utilization lé Company’s net operating loss may be
subject to substantial annual limitation due todtwmership change limitations provided by the Iné¢iRevenue Code and similar state
provisions. The annual limitation could result e texpiration of the net operating loss before use.
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
As of December 31, 2007 we had contractual obligatand commercial commitments as follows (in thods):

Payments Due by Period

Less Thar More Than
1-3 35
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Operating lease $3,881 $ 542 $1,71% $1,63: —
License obligation 1,171 28¢ 883 — —
Total contractual obligatior $5,05¢ $ 83C $2,59¢ $1,63¢ $ —

Operating leases consist of base rents for faglitve occupy in Richmond, California. License dddiigns consist of ongoing license
maintenance fees, milestones and royalties due $ades of ZFP TFs.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 underOrganization and Summary of Significant Accounfajjcies” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemants
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary fdata full description of recent accounting pronoements including the respective
expected dates of adoption and effects on restiliperations and financial condition.

Iltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interasts relates primarily to our cash equivalentsiamestments. The investments are
available-for-sale. We do not use derivative finahinstruments in our investment portfolio. Weeatipt to ensure the safety and preservation
of our invested funds by limiting default and mdrkisks. Our cash and investments policy emphadigeslity and preservation of principal
over other portfolio considerations. We select simeents that maximize interest income to the extessible within these guidelines. We
invest excess cash in securities with differenturiéés to match projected cash needs and limitentration of credit risk by diversifying our
investments among a variety of high credit-quaiguers. We mitigate default risk by investing nyoinvestment-grade securities. The
portfolio includes marketable securities with aetsecondary or resale markets to ensure portigliadity. All investments have a fixed
interest rate and are carried at market value, lwapproximates cost. We recognized a gain on foreigrency translation of $74,000 in 2007,
and a gain of $454,000 and a loss of $374,000 k#igio currency translation in 2006 and 2005, retipely.

We carry our investments of debt securities atfalue, estimated as the amount at which an ass$iabdity could be bought or sold in a
current transaction between willing parties. A camakion of factors in the housing and mortgage raekincluding rising delinquency and
default rates on subprime mortgages and declinimgehprices, has led to increases in actual andcéegberedit losses for residential mortgage-
backed securities and mortgage loans. In 2007 redit markets began reacting to these changirtigriaand the prices of many securities
backed by subprime mortgages began to decline. Laalames of transactions in certain types of aelalized securities might make it more
difficult to obtain relevant market information ¢stimate the fair value of these financial instrataeln accordance with our investment pol
we diversify our credit risk and invest in debtséties with high credit quality. Substantially allir investments held as of December 31, 2007
are actively traded and our estimate of fair védueased upon quoted market prices. We have notded losses on our securities due to credit
or liquidity issues. We will continue to monitorrocredit risks and evaluate the potential neednfigrairment charges related to credit risks in
future periods.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Sangamo BioSciences, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Sangamo BioSciences, Inc. as of Dearedih 2007 and 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of operationskstdders’ equity, and cash flows for each of thee¢hyears in the period ended December 31,
2007. These financial statements are the respdihsilfithe Company’s management. Our responsybititto express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaenferred to above present fairly, in all mategapects, the financial position of
Sangamo BioSciences, Inc. as of December 31, 2002@06, and the results of its operations anceish flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrste&iements, Sangamo BioSciences, Inc. changeakitsod of accounting for stock-
based compensation as of January 1, 2006.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
effectiveness of Sangamo BioSciences Inc.’s intexoatrol over financial reporting as of Decembgr 32007, based on the criteria established
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issuedtrsy Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thegifivay Commission and our report
dated February 28, 2008 expressed an unqualifisdoopthereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
February 28, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Sangamo BioSciences, Inc.

We have audited Sangamo BioSciences, Inc.’s inteordrol over financial reporting as of Decembér 3007, based on criteria
established itnternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission (i
COSO criteria). Sangamo BioSciences, Inc.’s manageis responsible for maintaining effective intdroontrol over financial reporting, and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezoatrol over financial reporting included in thecampanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the compargternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Sangamo BioSciences, Inc. main@ime all material respects, effective internal ttohover financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007 based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Sangamo BioSciemmess of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and tlgestonsolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flowsefich of the three years in the period ended DbeeBil, 2007 and our report dated
February 28, 2008 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
February 28, 2008
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SANGAMO BIOSCIENCES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands, except share
and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 12,27¢ $ 12,70:
Marketable securitie 68,81: 41,21¢
Interest receivabl 324 55
Accounts receivabl 20¢ 487
Prepaid expenst 497 594
Total current asse 82,11¢ 55,05¢
Property and equipment, r 1,77(¢ 67%
Other asset 12 49
Total asset $ 83,90( $ 55,78(

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 3,53¢ $ 1,72¢
Accrued compensation and employee ben 1,19¢ 87¢
Deferred revenu 4,944 2,59¢
Total current liabilities 9,681 5,20(C
Deferred revenue, n-current portior 2,09 1,87¢
Total liabilities 11,77¢ 7,07t

Commitments and contingenci — —
Stockholder equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 80,000,000 shar®ared, 40,315,368 and 35,045,398 shares isquetd a

outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respéc 403 35C
Additional paic-in capital 221,17¢ 176,51¢
Accumulated defici (149,75) (128,277)
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 29t 114
Total stockholder equity 72,12; 48,70¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 83,90( $ 55,78(

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ients.
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SANGAMO BIOSCIENCES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues
Collaboration agreemen
Research gran
Total revenue
Operating expense
Research and developmt
General and administrati

Total operating expens
Loss from operation
Interest income, ne
Other income/(expens
Net loss
Basic and diluted net loss per sh

Shares used in computing basic and diluted netdesshart

Year Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2005

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 6,781
2,31
9,09¢

25,55¢
8,31(
33,86¢
(24,77)
3,217

74

$ (21,480
$  (0.59
37,35¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ients.
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$ 6,62¢ $ 1,83C
1,26( 652
7,88¢ 2,48¢
21,527 10,90¢
7,081 5,321
28,61 16,23:
(20,729 (13,749
2,411 85C
454 (395)
$(17,869) $ (13,299
$ (0.59 $ (0.5
32,50: 25,85¢
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Balances at December 31, 2(

Issuance of common stock in connection with regestelirect
offering and upon exercise of stock optit

Issuance of common stock in connection with Re$ebitense
and Commercial Option agreem

Issuance of common stock under employee stock paechlar

Non-employee stoc-based compensatic

Comprehensive los

Increase in unrealized gain on marketable secsi
Other than temporary loss on marketable secu

Net loss
Comprehensive los

Balances at December 31, 2(

Issuance of common stock in connection with regestelirect
offering and upon exercise of stock optit

Issuance of common stock in connection with techgiels
purchase agreeme

Issuance of common stock under employee stock paechlar

Stoclk-based compensatic

Comprehensive los

Increase in unrealized gain on marketable secsi

Net loss
Comprehensive los

Balances at December 31, 2(

Issuance of common stock in connection with regestelirect
offering and upon exercise of stock optit

Issuance of common stock in connection with liceageemen

Issuance of common stock under employee stock paecplar

Stoclk-based compensatic

Comprehensive los:

Increase in unrealized gain on marketable secs

Net loss
Comprehensive los

Balances at December 31, 2(

SANGAMO BIOSCIENCES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Total

Common Stock Other )
Additional Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders
Paid-in

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income Equity
25,271,05 $ 253 $129,22¢ $ (97,11 $ 1C $ 32,371
4,218,23! 42 14,22 — — 14,26¢
1,000,001 10 3,84( — — 3,85(C
81,61« 1 262 — — 264
— — 301 — — 301
— — — — 29 29
— — — — 21 21
— — — (13,299 — (13,299
— — — — — (13,249
30,570,91 30€ 147,85¢ (110,409 60 37,81«
3,374,89 33 20,52 — — 20,55¢
1,000,001 10 5,77( — — 5,78(
99,59( 1 34¢ — — 34¢
— — 2,01¢ — — 2,01¢
— — — — 54 54
— — — (17,869 — (17,869
— — — — — (17,810
35,045,39 35C 176,51: (128,277 114 48,70¢
4,160,24. 42 33,20¢ — — 33,24¢
1,000,001 1C 8,54( — — 8,55(
109,72° 1 482 — — 483
- 2,437 — — 2,431
— — — — 181 181
_ — — (21,48() — (21,480
— — — — — (21,299
40,315,36 $ 40: $221,17¢ $(149,75) $ 208§ 72,12

52
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SANGAMO BIOSCIENCES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of premium/discount on marketable séizs
Realized loss on marketable securi
Issuance of common stock in connection with teabgiels purchase agreem:
Stock-based compensatic
Changes in operating assets and liabilil
Interest receivabl
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Accrued compensation and employee ben
Deferred revenu
Net cash used in operating activit
Investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securi
Maturities of marketable securiti
Proceeds from sales of marketable secut
Purchases of property and equipm
Net cash used in investing activiti
Financing activities:
Issuance of common stock in connection with liceageement
Proceeds from issuance of common si
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis.
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

$ (21,480  $(17,86)  $(13,299)
274 171 274
(2,145 (857) 214
— — 21

— 5,78( —
2,431 2,01¢ 301
(26¢ 163 42
27¢ 484 (402)
134 (277) (48)
1,81z 192 757
321 (55) 27€
2,57( (4,23)) 7,78¢
(16,060  (14,47¢) (4,069
(119,85Y) (67,13Y (33,519
93,27 55,27 29,51¢

1,314 — —
(1,369 (374) (42€)
(26,63¢) (12,23)) (4,429
8,55( — 3,85(
33,72¢ 20,90t 14,52¢
42,27¢ 20,90t 18,37¢
(427) (5,80¢) 9,881
12,70: 18,501 8,62¢
$ 1227t $12,70: $ 18,50
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SANGAMO BIOSCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant AccountingPolicies
Sangamo and Basis of Presentatis

Sangamo BioSciences, Inc. (“Sangamo”) was incotpdrin the State of Delaware on June 22, 1995 sifatiised on the development
and commercialization of novel transcription fastéor gene regulation and gene modification. Ouregeegulation and gene modification
technology platform is enabled by the engineerihg dass of transcription factors known as zimgé&r DNA-binding proteins (“ZFPs”).
Potential applications of Sangamo’s technologyudeldevelopment of human therapeutics, plant dtpieuand enhancement of
pharmaceutical protein production. Sangamo williegjadditional financial resources to completedbeelopment and commercialization of
its products including ZFP Therapeutics.

Sangamo is currently working on a number of lormgatdevelopment projects that will involve experirtedrand unproven technology.
The projects may require several years and sulistampenditures to complete and ultimately mayibsuccessful. We plan to finance
operations with available cash resources, fundsived under research grants and Enabling Technaloligborations and strategic
partnerships, and from the issuance of equity bt decurities. Sangamo believes that its availed$d, cash equivalents and investments as of
December 31, 2007, along with expected revenues Epabling Technology collaborations and stratggignerships, will be adequate to fund
its operations through 2009. Sangamo will needigersubstantial additional capital to fund subsegoperations and complete the
development and commercialization of its produdtsee through significant corporate partnershipsaliling Technology agreements and
research grants, or issuance of equity securli@sgamo may seek to raise additional capital wbheditions permit, however, there is no
assurance funding will be available on favorabtentg if at all.

The consolidated financial statements include te®ants of Sangamo and its wholly owned subsidi@gndaq Limited, after
elimination of all intercompany balances and tratisas.

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principlesuisees management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the financial statements and the accaogipg notes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

The carrying amounts for financial instruments éstivsg of cash and cash equivalents, accountsvailei, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities approximate fair value due to their shmaturities. Marketable securities are statettheit estimated fair values, based on quoted
market prices for the same or similar instrumefitge counterparties to the agreements relatingg@dmpany’s investment securities consist
of various major corporations and financial ingtdos with high credit standing.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Sangamo considers all highly liquid investmentshased with original maturities of three monthgess at the purchase date to be cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents of $12/®mand $12.7 million at December 31, 2007 and&08spectively, consist of deposits in
money market investment accounts and corporateatipgraccounts.

Marketable Securitie:

Sangamo classifies its marketable securities atablexfor-sale and records its investments atJalue in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 115, ‘@aunting for Certain Investments in Debt and Eq&igcurities.” Available-for-sale
securities are carried at estimated fair value dase
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on quoted market prices, with the unrealized h@djains and losses included in accumulated othepoehensive income. The Company
evaluates declines in market value for potentigddimment if the declines result in a value belowt@nd is determined to be other than
temporary. Realized gains and losses on availailsdle securities are included in other incomg¥éase), net, which is determined using the
specific identification method. The Company recardéher-than-temporary losses on its investmen&p$0 and $21,000 for 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

The table below summarizes our available-for-satigties (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains (Losses) Fair Value
December 31, 200
Marketable securitie:
Commercial pape $40,51¢ $ 18C $ — $40,69¢
Asset backed securiti 13,75: 17 — 13,77(
Corporate note 14,34¢ — D 14,34¢
Total $68,61" $ 197 $ (1) $68,81:
December 31, 200!
Marketable securitie:
Commercial pape $31,48¢ $ 14 $ — $31,49¢
Asset backed securiti 9,71¢ 1 — 9,72(
Total $41,20: $ 15 $ — $41,21¢

Property and Equipmen

Property and equipment are stated at cost, lessradated depreciation and amortization. Depreaiasacalculated using the straighte
method based on the estimated useful lives ofdlatad assets (generally three to five years)ldasehold improvements, amortization is
calculated using the straight-line method basethershorter of the useful life or the lease term.

Impairment of Lonc-Lived Assets

The Company’s policy regarding long-lived asset®igvaluate the recoverability of its assets wienfacts and circumstances suggest
that the assets may be impaired. This assessméait wélue is performed based on the estimatedsendnted cash flows compared to the
carrying value of the assets. If the future castvél (undiscounted and without interest charges)esiethan the carrying value, a write-down
would be recorded to reduce the related asses &sttmated fair value.

Foreign Currency Translation

Sangamo translates the assets and liabilities dbieign subsidiary stated in local functionalrencies to U.S. dollars at the rates of
exchange in effect at the end of the period. Reggr@und expenses are translated using rates ofrgeiraeffect during the period. Gains and
losses from translation of financial statementsod@nated in foreign currencies, if material, warelided as a separate component of other
comprehensive income (loss) in the statement akbtmders’ equity until closure of the Gendaq fiagiin September 2002. Subsequently,
gains and losses from translation of Gendaq’s firstatements are recorded as other income.

The Company records foreign currency transactiotiseaexchange rate prevailing at the date ofrdmestiction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency are earsured at the exchange rates in effect at thadmkheet date. Foreign currency transaction
gains and losses are recorded in the statements of
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operations and gains of $74,000, $454,000 and $804yere recorded during 2007, 2006 and 2005, ctisply.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is comprised of net loss anel attmprehensive income (loss) which include uized!gains/(losses) on marketa
securities and foreign currency translation adjestts. Comprehensive loss for the years ended Desredibh 2007, 2006, and 2005 is included
in the statement of stockholders’ equity.

Revenue Recognitio

In accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No410Revenue Recognition,” revenue from researclvities made under strategic
partnering agreements and Enabling Technology lootktions is recognized as the services are prdvidesn there is persuasive evidence that
an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, tice s fixed or determinable, and collectibilisyrieasonably assured. Amounts received in
advance under such agreements are deferred untbibve criteria are met and the research serareggerformed. Sangamo’s research grants
are typically multi-year agreements and providetlfier reimbursement of qualified expenses for reteand development as defined under the
terms of the grant agreement. Revenue under ggaee¢ments is recognized when the related qualifisdarch expenses are incurred. Grant
reimbursements are received on a quarterly or nhob#sis and are subject to the issuing agencgtd vf audit.

Milestone payments under research, partneringcensing agreements are recognized as revenuetbp@thievement of mutually
agreed upon milestones, provided that (i) the rules event is substantive and its achievementtissagonably assured at the inception of the
agreement, and (ii) there are no performance didige associated with the milestone payment.

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force IsSsu®0-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple iDetables,” revenue
arrangements entered into after June 15, 2003irttlatde multiple deliverables, are divided intgpagate units of accounting if the deliverables
meet certain criteria, including whether the faitue of the delivered items can be determined dmethver there is evidence of fair value of the
undelivered items. In addition, the considerat®allocated among the separate units of accoubtisgd on their fair values, and the applic
revenue recognition criteria are considered seplgr&dr each of the separate units of accounting.

For 2007, revenues related to DAS, JDRF and Sigmpeesented 59%, 16% and 12%, respectively, of tet@nues. Related to 2006,
revenues related to DAS and an Advanced Techndboggram grant awarded by the National Institut8tahdards and Technology
represented 67% and 12%, respectively, of totamaes. Related to 2005, revenues related to DA&Pan Advanced Technology Program
grant awarded by the National Institute of Standand Technology and LifeScan represented 27%, 22%,and 15%, respectively, of total
revenues. The Company’s accounts receivable areederom net revenue to customers located in thitedd States. As of December 31, 2007
and 2006, 100% of accounts receivable were frortoouars located in the United States. As of DecerBthe007, Genentech and a federal
government research grant with the Department ééix represented 72% and 28%, respectively, ofusats receivable. As of December 31,
2006, accounts receivable from Pfizer and grantrded by the National Institute of Standards anchfielogy and Cystic Fibrosis represer
52%, 38% and 10% of net accounts receivable.

Research and Development Expen:

Research and development expenses consist oficostsed for Company-sponsored as well as collabaaesearch and development
activities. These costs include direct and reseeetgted overhead expenses, which include salaridther personnel-related expenses, stock
based compensation, pre-clinical and clinical gtsdiacility costs, laboratory supplies and deptémn of facilities and laboratory equipment,
as well as the cost of funding research at unitiessand other research institutions, and are esqekas incurred.
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Costs to acquire technologies that are utilizeaggearch and development and that have no alteerfature use are expensed as incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounteidlSatock-based employee compensation arrangemadés the intrinsic value
method prescribed by Accounting Principles Boarih@m No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Emmeyg (APB No. 25), as allowed by
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-based CompeosdisFAS No. 123), as amended by SFAS No. 148, éuirng for Stock-Based
Compensation—Transition and Disclosure (SFAS N@&)1As a result, no expense was recognized fopogtio purchase our common stock
that were granted with an exercise price equahitonfiarket value at the date of grant prior to dand, 2006. In December 2004, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS M8. (tevised 2004) Share-Based Payment (SFAS Ndr)12&ich replaces
SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB No. 25. SFAS NBR t2quires all share-based payments to employresgding grants of employee
stock options, to be recognized in the financiateshents based on their fair values. Subsequéehéteffective date, the pro forma disclosures
previously permitted under SFAS No. 123 are no éoran alternative to financial statement recognitiffective January 1, 2006, the
Company adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modifiedgective method. Under this method, compensatishrecognized includes:

(a) compensation cost for all share-based paynggatged prior to, but not yet vested as of Decer3thieP005, based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the original/fsions of SFAS No. 123 amortized on an accelerbteis over the options’ vesting period,
and (b) compensation cost for all share-based patgmgganted subsequent to December 31, 2005, basthe grant-date fair value estimated
in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128Rortized on a straight-line basis over the optieesting period. Results for prior peric
have not been restated.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is accounted for in accordartteSFAS No. 109Accounting of Income Taxesr SFAS 109. Income tax expense
has been provided using the liability method. Drefeetax assets and liabilities are determined beasdtie difference between the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilgieseasured by the enacted tax rates that will lefféct when these differences reverse. The
Company provides a valuation allowance againstiefgrred tax assets if, based upon the availalfielsee, it is not more likely than not that
the deferred tax assets will be realized.

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation A8counting for Uncertainty in Income TaxgBIN 48"), on January 1, 2007. As a resul
the implementation of FIN 48, the Company did remtagnize any adjustment to the liability for unaerttax positions and therefore did not
record any adjustment to the beginning balancetaimed earnings on the consolidated balance sheef the date of adoption, the Company
recorded a $1.1 million reduction to deferred tasets and the associated valuation allowance feicognized tax benefits. If the unrecogni
tax benefits were recognized, there would be naichpn the effective tax rate.

The Company’s practice is to recognize interest@makenalties related to income tax matters inimedax expense. As of December 31
2007, the Company had no accrued interest andfalfpes. The company does not anticipate a sigmifichange to it unrecognized tax
benefits over the next twelve months. The unrecghtax benefits may change during the next yaatdms that arise in the ordinary course
of business.
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Net Loss Per Shar

Basic and diluted net loss per share informatiarafoperiods is presented under the requiremenfEAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.
Basic net loss per share has been computed usngeighted-average number of shares of common statskanding during the period, less
shares subject to repurchase. Diluted net losshme includes the impact of potentially dilutieesrities. Stock options represent the
Company’s only potentially dilutive securities amdre anti-dilutive for all years presented. Diletistock options were 2,029,172, 2,361,415
and 2,172,463 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivélg following table presents the calculation istdrical basic and diluted net loss per
common share (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Net loss $(21,480)  $(17,8649)  $(13,299)
Basic and diluted
Weighte-average shares of common stock outstan 37,35t 32,50: 25,85t
Shares used in computing basic and diluted netdesshart 37,35¢ 32,50: 25,85¢
Basic and diluted net loss per sh $ (0.5¢) $ (055 $ (0.5))
Segments

The Company operated in one segment. Managemesnbusemeasurement of profitability and does noteggge its business for intert
reporting. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, 100%l tong-lived assets were maintained in the Wi®reover, for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, 100% of revesm@&xpenses were generated and incurred in the U.S

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In November 2007, the Emerging Issues Task FortE{)Fatified a consensus on EITF Issue No. 07{TEE7-1), “Accounting for
Collaborative Arrangements”, which requires papigits in a collaboration to make separate disobsstegarding the nature and purpose of an
arrangement, their rights and obligations undeatinengement, the accounting policy for the arramgy@ and the income statement
classification and amounts arising from the arramge between participants for each period an incstaement is presented. EITF 07-1 is
effective for us beginning in the first quarterfistal year 2009. We are currently evaluating thpact of the provisions of EITF 07-1 on our
financial position, results of operations and cémlvs and therefore, the impact of the adoptionriknown at this time.

In June 2007, the EITF ratified a consensus on E$§ke No. 07-3 (EITF 07-3), “Accounting for NonfRedable Advance Payments for
Goods or Services to Be Used in Future ResearciDardlopment Activities”, which concluded that nefundable advance payments for
goods or services for use in research and developactivities should be deferred and capitalizd@FED7-3 is effective for us beginning in t
first quarter of fiscal year 2008. We are currertaluating the impact of the provisions of EITF®@n our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows and therefore, the imgfatte adoption is unknown at this time.

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (FASB) issued Statement on Financial ActingrStandards No. 159, “The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finahtiabilities” (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 permits compasito make a ontme election to cart
eligible types of financial assets and liabilitagair value, even if fair value measurement isrequired under U.S. GAAP. SFAS 159 is
effective for us beginning in the first quarterfistal year 2008. We are currently evaluating thpact of the provisions of SFAS 159 on our
financial position, results of operations and cmlvs and therefore, the impact of the adoptionriknown at this time.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1540y Walue Measurements” (SFAS 157). SFAS 157 deffae value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in accordancthwienerally accepted
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accounting principles, and expands disclosurestdbowalue measurements. SFAS 157 is effectivaifobeginning in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2008 and we do not believe the imp&edoption will be material to our financial positi, results of operations and cash flows.

2.  Stock-Based Compensatior

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted FAS 12BRhveupersedes our previous accounting under ARB RS 123R requires the
recognition of compensation expense, using a faliresbased method, for costs related to all shasebpayments including stock options and
stock issued under its employee stock purchase plagier FAS 123R, the value of the portion of thaal that is ultimately expected to ves
recognized as expense on a straight-line basistbeeequisite service periods in its Consolid&@&atements of Operations.

The following table shows total stock-based comp#as expense recognized in the consolidated stateof operations for the year
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (in thoskand

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Research and developm: $1,44¢  $1,22¢  $30C
General and administrati\ 98¢ 787 1

Total stocl-based compensation expe! $2,437 $2,01¢  $301

Adoption of FAS 123F

Employee stock-based compensation expense recogni2907 was calculated based on awards ultimatghected to vest and has been
reduced for estimated forfeitures. FAS 123R reguicefeitures to be estimated at the time of geart revised, if necessary, in subsequent
periods if actual forfeitures differ from thoseipsites. A forfeiture rate of 22% is applied to #heck-based compensation expense, determine
through historical experience of employee stockoopéxercises. The following table shows total egpk stock-based compensation expense
(see Note 6 for types of stock-based employee geraents) recognized under SFAS No. 123R includéddrconsolidated statements of
operations for year ended December 31, 2007 (insténods):

Costs and expense

Research and developmt $1,43¢
General and administrati\ 98¢
Total employee sto-based compensation expel $2,42:

There was no capitalized stock-based employee cosagtien cost as of December 31, 2007.

As of December 31, 2007, total compensation cdata@ to nonvested stock options to be recogniaddture periods was $18.1 million,
which is expected to be expensed over a weightedage period of 37 months.
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Pro Forma Information for Period Prior to Adoption of FAS 123R

The following table illustrates the effect on ne¢d and net loss per share had the Company apipédeir value recognition provisions
SFAS No. 123 to account for its employee stockaypénd employee stock purchase plans for the yewdeDecember 31, 2005 because
stockbased employee compensation was not accountedifay the fair value recognition method during thetiod. For purposes of pro for
disclosure, the estimated fair value of the stoghrds, as prescribed by SFAS No. 123, is amortiaexkpense over the vesting period of such
awards (in thousands, except per share data).

Net loss:
As reportec $(13,299)
Less: stoc-based compensation expense determined under thefaé based methc $ (2,560
Pro forma net los $(15,859
Basic and diluted net loss per sh
As reportec $ (0.5))
Pro forma $ (0.61)

Valuation Assumptions

The employee stock-based compensation expensenigedgunder FAS 123R was determined using the Biatloles option valuation
model. Option valuation models require the inpuswbjective assumptions and these assumptionsazgrover time.

The Company primarily bases its determination qfeeted volatility through its assessment of théohisal volatility of its Common
Stock. The Company does not believe that it is tokely on its historical exercise and post-ves&zthination activity to provide accurate data
for estimating our expected term for use in detamg the fair value of these options. Thereforealasved by Staff Accounting Bulletin (SA
No. 107,Share-Based Paymenthe Company has opted to use the simplified ntetbpestimating its expected term equal to thepoint
between the vesting period and the contractual.term

The weighted—average assumptions used for estigntténfair value of the employee stock optionsaaréollows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rat 3.5-5.0% 4.7-5.1% 3.7-4.5%
Expected life of optiol 6.25 yre 6.25 yre 6.81 yr:
Expected dividend yield of stoc 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 0.9¢-0.9: 0.94-0.97 1.C-1.0t

The weighted—average assumptions used for estignttenfair value of the employees’ stock purchagets are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rat 3.6-5.1% 2.5-5.1% 1.3-2.¢%
Expected life of optiol 0.5-2.0 yre 0.5-2.0 yre 0.5-2.0 yre
Expected dividend yield of stoc 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 0.4€-0.77 0.41-0.9¢ 0.7¢-0.7¢
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Sangamo granted 10,000 nonqualified common stotikrapto consultants for both 2007 and 2006, respeyg, and also granted 15,000
nonqualified stock option to consultants in 2008ciSoptions are included in the option tables disetl in Note 6. The options generally vest
over four years at a rate of 25 percent one yean fyrant date and one-thirty-sixth per month thigee@and expire ten years after the grant date.
Total nonqualified stock-based compensation exptarseonsultants included in the total stock-basechpensation expenses was $15,000,
$33,000 and $301,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, ré@sphc The fair value of these options was detedi using the Black-Scholes Merton
model.

3. Major Customers, Partnerships and Strategic Allianes
Agreement with Dow AgroSciences in Plant Agricultue

On October 1, 2005, we entered into a Researclng&and Commercial Option Agreement with Dow AgieBces LLC (“DAS”), a
wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Dow Chemicalrforation. Under this agreement, we will provide ®#ith access to our proprietary Z
technology and the exclusive right to use our Z&fhmnology to modify the genomes or alter the naceid or protein expression of plant ce
plants, or plant cell cultures. We have retaingtits to use plants or plant-derived products tivdeZFP TFs or ZFNs into human or animals
for diagnostic, therapeutic, or prophylactic pugmsNe have achieved several milestones in thighmmiation.

Our agreement with DAS provides for an initial #gear research term during which time we are wgrkogether to validate and
optimize the application of our ZFP technology tarps, plant cells and plant cell cultures. Durihg three-year research term, DAS has the
option to obtain a commercial license to sell piduncorporating or derived from plant cells getted using our ZFP technology, including
agricultural crops, industrial products and pldatived biopharmaceuticals. The option expires gpt&nber 30, 2008. This commercial lice
will be exclusive for all such products other treammal and human health products. In the eventDi#& exercises this option, DAS may elect
to extend the research program beyond the inftiget-year term on a year-to-year basis.

Pursuant to the Research License and Commerci@Ofpgreement, DAS made an initial cash paymentstof $7.5 million. In
November 2005, the Company sold approximately lilllom shares of common stock to DAS at a pricé&8f85 per share, resulting
proceeds of $3.9 million. In addition, DAS will pride $6.0 million in research funding over theimlithree-year research term and may make
an additional payment of up to $4.0 million in rase milestone payments to us during this samegediepending on the success of the
research program. In the event that DAS electstene the research program beyond the initial tiyess term, DAS will provide additional
research funding. If DAS exercises its option ttagba commercial license, we will be entitled wtl payment of the $4.0 million in research
milestones, a one-time exercise fee of $6.0 milllmmimum annual sublicensing payments totalinggdo $25.3 million over 11 years,
development and commercialization milestone paymfamteach product, and royalties on sales of wtsdérurthermore, DAS will have the
right to sublicense our ZFP technology to thirdtigarfor use in plant cells, plants, or plant ceiltures, and we will be entitled to 25% of any
cash consideration received by DAS under such ceridies.

We have agreed to supply DAS and its sublicensébsAkP TFs and/or ZFNs for both research and coroiaeuse over the three year
period of the agreement. If DAS exercises its aptmobtain a commercial license, DAS may request we transfer, at DAS’s expense, the
ZFP manufacturing technology to DAS or to a mutuatireed-upon contract manufacturer.

The Research License and Commercial Option Agreemidrierminate automatically if DAS fails to exase its option for a commerci
license by the end of the initial three-year reskederm or September 30, 2008. Following DAS's eiger of the option and payment of the
exercise fee, DAS may terminate the agreementyatime. In addition, each party may terminate theeament upon an uncured material
breach of the other party. In the event of any beation of the agreement, all rights to use our Zé¢hnology will revert
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to us, and DAS will no longer be permitted to pi@ebur ZFP technology or to develop or, excepinnited circumstances, commercialize any
products derived from our ZFP technology. Revemaksed to the research license under the DAS ageeare being recognized ratably over
the initial three year research term of the agregraerd were $2.5 million during 2007, $2.5 millidaring 2006 and $625,000 during 2005.
Revenues attributable to collaborative researchdaveélopment performed under the DAS agreement 2@ million during 2007,

$2.4 million during 2006 and $51,000 during 200Bv&nues attributable to the achievement of atmd&stones were $840,000 during 2007
and $330,000 during 2006. Related costs and expémserred under the DAS agreement were $467,066g2007 and $568,000 and
$51,000 during 2006 and 2005 respectively.

Agreement with Sigma-Aldrich Corporation in Laboratory Research Reagents

In July 2007, we entered into a license agreeméht8igma. Under the License Agreement, we areighog Sigma with access to our
proprietary ZFP technology and the exclusive righise the technology to develop and commerciaéigearch reagents products and services
in the research field, excluding certain agricudtuesearch uses that Sangamo previously licemsBdw AgroSciences LLC. Under the
agreement, Sangamo and Sigma have agreed to canthuee-year research program to develop labgragsearch reagents using our ZFP
technology. In addition, for three years we wilsias Sigma in connection with Sigma’s efforts torket and sell services employing our
technology in the research field. We will trandfee ZFP manufacturing technology to Sigma or toudually agreed-upon contract
manufacturer upon Sigma’s request. Prior to thepetion of this transfer, we will be responsible $upplying ZFPs for use by Sigma in
performing services in the research field. Undertdrms of the agreement, Sigma made an initiaheay comprising an upfront license fee
and the purchase of one million (1,000,000) shaf&angamo’s common stock under a separate stackgee agreement, resulting in a total
upfront payment to Sangamo of $13.5 million. Theeze three components to the $13.5 million we raakian equity investment by Sigma in
Sangamo common stock valued at $8.55 million, 8%illion license fee, and $1.0 million of resdafonding. Under the License
Agreement, we may receive additional research fumdf up to $2.0 million, development milestone payts of up to $5.0 million, and
commercial milestone payments based on net sales t@f $17.0 million, subject to the continuatidritee agreement. During the term of the
license agreement Sigma is obligated to pay to &ongninimum annual payments, a share of certaiengss received by Sigma from
sublicensees, and royalty payments on the saleesfded products and services. Sigma also hagthtete sublicense the ZFP technology for
research applications and we will receive 50% gof sublicensing revenues in the first two years 25t of any sublicensing revenues
thereafter. We retain the sole right to use arehe our ZFP technology for GMP production purpo®eghe production of materials used in
or administered to humans, and for any other inglistommercial use. Revenues related to the lieemsler the Sigma, agreement are being
recognized ratably. We are recognizing the $1.0onibf research funding over a 12-month period #ed$3.95 million license fee over the
36-month research period of the agreement. Revargegnized under the agreement were $1.1 milliomg 2007. Related costs and
expenses incurred under the Sigma agreement wéGeGk® during 2007.

Enabling Technology Collaborations in PharmaceutichProtein Production

We have established several research collaboratiahss area. In December 2004, we announcedearels collaboration agreement v
Pfizer to use our ZFP technology to develop enhdued lines for protein pharmaceutical producti®he scope of this agreement was
expanded in January 2006 and again in January @@ provided further research funding from Pfizedévelop additional cell lines for
enhanced protein production. Under the terms oatireement, Pfizer is funding research at Sangad&@angamo will provide our propriet:
ZFP technology for Pfizer to assess its feasibibityuse in mammalian cell-based protein productitie are generating novel cell lines and
vector systems for enhanced protein productionelsas novel technology for rapid creation of nawduction cell lines. During the first
quarters of 2007, 2006 and 2005, we received $26808775,000 and $500,000, respectively, in reegiated funding under our agreements
with Pfizer. Revenues attributable to collaboratiesearch and development performed under the
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Pfizer agreement were $96,000, $747,000 and $70@0fng 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Relatests and expenses incurred under
the Pfizer agreements were $358,000 during 200%844d,000 and $154,000 during 2006 and 2005, r&spc

In addition, in April 2007, we established a resband license agreement with Genentech. Undeagneement with Genentech, we are
developing, ZFNs capable of making targeted madtiioms to the genome of Genentech cell lines tegea cell lines with novel
characteristics for protein pharmaceutical progucpurposes. The agreement was expanded to infticttier ZFNs in February 2008.
Genentech paid an upfront fee of $400,000, will @ayongoing technology access fee, and certain eatgupon achievement of specified
milestones relating to the research of ZFNs andléwelopment and commercialization of products rfestured using a modified cell line
created by our ZFN technology. Revenues attribatadbkollaborative research and development peddrander the Genentech agreement
were $283,000 during 2007. Costs and expensesrperibunder the Genentech agreement were $82,00@Q2007.

Funding from Research Foundations
The Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation Interraial

On October 26, 2006, Sangamo announced a partpewvithi the Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundatiteriational (JDRF) to provide
financial support to one of Sangamo’s Phase 2 huwtiaical studies of SB-509, a ZFP Therapeutic ted@h development for the treatment of
diabetic neuropathy. Under the agreement with JBRIFsubject to its terms and conditions, includimgCompany’s achievement of certain
milestones associated with the Company’s Phasmi2alltrial of SB-509 for the treatment of mild reoderate diabetic neuropathy, JDRF will
pay the Company an aggregate amount of up to $8i®@mmThrough December 31, 2007, we have rece2® million. After the first
commercial launch of SB-509 in a major market, JORE the right to receive, subject to certain ktidins, annual payments from Sangamo,
until such time when the total amount paid to JDREluding payments made on account of certaimBagg arrangements, equals three times
the amount received by us from JDRF.

Under the agreement, we are obligated to use coamatigreasonable efforts to carry out the Phat#and, thereafter, to develop and
commercialize, a product containing SB-509 fortteatment of diabetes and complications of diab&ésare obligated to cover all costs of
the Phase 2 trial that are not covered by JDRREstgif we fail to satisfy these obligations, JDRBRy have the right, subject to certain
limitations, to obtain an exclusive, sublicensdldense, to the intellectual property generatedi®yn the course of the Phase 2 trial, to make
and commercialize products containing SB-509 fertteatment of diabetes and complications of deghdf JDRF obtains such a license, it is
obligated to pay us a percentage of its revenwes firoduct sales and sublicensing arrangemeniBRf- fails to satisfy its obligations to
develop and commercialize a product containing 8B-&nder the Agreement, then their license righiis@minate and we will receive a non-
exclusive, fully paid license, for any intellectymbperty developed during JDRF’s use of the lieets research, develop and commercialize
products containing SB-509 for the treatment obdias and complications of diabetes.

During 2007, revenues attributable to researchdevelopment performed under the JDRF partnership %&.5 million. Related costs
and expenses during 2007 were $4.7 million.

The Michael J. Fox Foundation

On January 23, 2007, Sangamo announced a partmevihithe Michael J. Fox Foundation (MJFF) to pdevfinancial support of
Sangamo’s ZFP TF¢' to activate the expression of glial cell line-dexdwneurotrophic factor (GDNF) that has shown prenmspreclinical
testing to slow or stop the progression of Parkirsdisease. Under the agreement with MJFF andestty its terms and conditions, MJFF
will pay the Company $950,000 over a period of fwears. Through December 31, 2007, we have rec&#@8,000.
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Revenues attributable to research and developneefirmed under the MJFF partnership were $397,00hg 2007. Related costs and
expenses incurred under the MJFF partnership wa9€,800 during 2007.

4.  Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Laboratory equipmer $ 3,14 $ 2,46¢
Furniture and fixture 822 78€
Leasehold improvemen 2,31¢ 1,65¢
6,28 4,91:

Less accumulated depreciati (4,517 (4,23%)
$1,77C $ 67F

Depreciation and amortization expense were $274$001,000 and $274,000 during 2007, 2006 and 2@8pgectively.

5.  Commitments

Sangamo occupies office and laboratory space wphrating leases in Richmond, California that expirAugust 2014. License
obligations consist of non-cancelable ongoing lseemaintenance fees and royalties due from salEERfTFs. Rent expense was $ 547,000,
$471,000 and $451,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005¢n¢isely. Future minimum payments under contractiéibations and commercial
commitments at December 31, 2007 consist of tHeviirhg (in thousands):

Operating

License
Fiscal Year: Lease Agreements
2008 $ 54z $ 28¢
2009 55€ 27¢
2010 57C 30z
2011 58t 30z

2012 60C —

Thereaftel 1,03¢ —
Total minimum payment $ 3,887 $ 1,171

6.  Stockholders Equity
Convertible Preferred Stock

All outstanding convertible preferred stock congdrinto common stock upon consummation of the Caryipanitial public offering in
April 2000. The Company has 5,000,000 preferredeshauthorized, which may be issued at the Boatidgetion.

Common Stock

In November 2005, Sangamo completed a registeredtdiffering to institutional and strategic invastfor a total of 5,080,000 shares
common stock at a price of $3.85 per share torthesttors, resulting in net proceeds of approximga#&B.2 million. As part of the offering,
Dow AgroSciences purchased 1.0 million shares ofroon stock resulting in gross proceeds of approtéin&3.9 million.
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In June 2006, in an underwritten public offeringl gursuant to an effective registration statem&atgamo sold 3,100,000 shares of
common stock at a public offering price of $6.75 gleare, resulting in net proceeds of approxim&$2ly.2 million after deducting
underwriter’s discount and commissions.

In December 2006, Sangamo issued 1,000,000 shiacesnmon stock to Edwards as partial considerdtiothe purchase of Edwards’
angiogenesis program. This transaction was valu&8.8 million, based on the fair value of its palyl traded stock at the close of the
transaction, less a discount for lack of markettgtiih the unregistered Common Stock and recordea @esearch and development expense in
the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

On July 20, 2007, Sangamo completed a registeredtabffering to a group of institutional investpirs which Sangamo sold an
aggregate of 3,278,689 shares of common stoclpata of $9.15 per share to such investors, regplti net proceeds of approximately $28.0
million.

On July 10, 2007, pursuant to a laboratory reseafents license agreement with Sigma, Sangamedsme million shares of comm
stock valued at a price of $8.55 per share.

Stock Option Plar

Sangamo’s 2004 Stock Option Plan (the “2004 Opfitam”), which supersedes the 2000 Stock Option,Rleovides for the issuance of
common stock and grants of options for common stoeknployees, officers, directors and consultarte. exercise price per share will be no
less than 85 percent of the fair value per shamofmon stock on the option grant date, and thiepérm will not exceed ten years. If the
person to whom the option is granted is a 10 persteckholder, and the option granted qualifieam$ncentive Stock Option Grant, then the
exercise price per share will not be less thangek@ent of the fair value per share of common stotkhe option grant date, and the option
term will not exceed five years. Options grantedamthe 2004 Option Plan generally vest over faarg at a rate of 25 percent one year from
the grant date and one thirty-sixth per month thféee and expire ten years after the grant, orezarpon employment termination. Options
granted pursuant to the 2004 Option Plan may becesesl prior to vesting, with the related shardgext to Sangamo’s right to repurchase the
shares that have not vested at the issue pribe ibption holder terminates employment. The rigliepurchase lapses over the original option
vesting period, as described above. Approximateynillion shares were initially reserved for iseae pursuant to the 2000 Stock Option F
and the 2004 Option Plan. The number of shareser#d for issuance automatically increases oritbetrading day of the fiscal year by an
amount equal to 3.0 percent of the total numbehafes of our common stock outstanding on thenraging day of the preceding fiscal year,
but in no event shall any such increase exceedrillibn shares per year.

Employee Stock Purchase Ple

The Board of Directors adopted the 2000 EmployeekSPurchase Plan in February 2000. Sangamo rekariatal of 400,000 shares of
common stock for issuance under the plan. Eligéotgloyees may purchase common stock at 85 pertém tesser of the fair market value
Sangamo’s common stock on the first day of theiagbple two-year offering period or the last dayhe# applicable six-month purchase period.
The reserve for shares available under the pldrawibmatically increase on the first trading déyhe second fiscal quarter each year,
beginning in 2001, by an amount equal to 1 peroéttie total number of outstanding shares of ounrmon stock on the last trading day of the
immediately preceding first fiscal quarter.
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A summary of Sangamo’s stock option activity folkaw

Options Outstanding

Weighted-
Shares Available Average Weighed Average
Exercise pe
for Grant of Number of Remaining
Options Shares Share Price Contractual Term
Balance at December 31, 20 2,984,61. 3,526,009 $ 5.5¢
Additional shares authorize 758,13: — —
Options grante: (750,500 750,50( $ 4.1Z
Options exercise — (138,239 $ 4.9¢
Options cancele 264,26( (264,260 $ 7.9
Balance at December 31, 2C 3,256,50! 3,874,09 $ 4.2 6.5¢
Additional shares authorize 917,12° — —
Options grante: (704,000 704,00( $ 6.7
Options exercise — (274,89¢) $ 212
Options cancele 155,38¢ (155,389 $ 732
Balance at December 31, 2C 3,625,022, 4,147,81. $ 5.6¢ 6.0C
Additional shares authorize 1,051,36: — —
Options grante: (1,703,501 1,703,501 $ 12.4:
Options exercise — (881,55 $ 6.0¢
Options cancele 218,78! (218,789 $ 6.0z
Balance at December 31, 2C 3,191,66: 4,750,97. $ 8.01 7.1k
Options exercisable at December 31, 2 2,250,67. $ 5.6 4.8¢

There were no shares subject to Sangamo’s rigtepafrchase as of December 31, 2007. The intriredigevof options exercised during
2007, 2006, 2005 were $5.4 million, $1.2 milliorde#512,000, respectively.

The weightedaverage fair value per share of options grantethg®007, 2006, and 2005 was $9.57, $5.36, and$83pectively, basi
upon the assumption in the Black-Scholes valuatiodel described in Note 2. The total fair valuslodres vested and expected to vest during
2007, 2006 and 2005 was $24.0, $6.9 and $2.8 mjlliespectively.

The weighted-average estimated fair value per stfaeenployee purchase rights during 2007, 2006,2805 were $2.65, $2.22, and
$1.61, respectively, based upon the assumptiotieiBlack-Scholes valuation model described in Nbbte
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The following table summarizes information withpest to stock options outstanding at December GQ72

Options Outstanding

Weighted Average
Number of Remaining
Range of Exercise Price Shares Contractual Life
(In Years)
$ 0.15-% 2.45 489,83: 0.7¢
$ 3.00-% 4.11 757,60: 7.2%
$ 4.15-$ 5.19 593,75 6.8:
$ 5.30-% 6.82 687,25( 8.07
$ 6.88-% 7.73 482,08« 8.7z
$ 8.00-$13.40 231,70( 3.5¢4
$13.98- $13.98 968,25( 9.8¢
$14.00- $15.03 475,50( 7.7C
$15.23- $17.65 50,00( 3.6t
$38.00- $38.00 15,00( 2.6%
4,750,97. 7.1%

At December 31, 2007, the aggregate intrinsic \vabfehe outstanding and exercisable options wasebmillion and $17.5 million,
respectively.

Common Stock
At December 31, 2007, the Company has reserve@sloaicommon stock for issuance as follows:

2000 Stock Option Plan and 2004 Stock Option | 7,942,64(1)
2000 Employee Stock Purchase F 1,608,03!
9,550,67.

(1) Consists of 3,191,668 shares available for granptibns as of December 31, 2007 and 4,750,972sharderlying outstanding optiol

7. Comprehensive Los:
Activities in comprehensive loss were as followsttiousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Net loss $(21,480)  $(17,864)  $(13,29))
Increase in unrealized gains on marketable sees 181 54 29
Other than temporary loss on investme — — 21
Comprehensive los $(21,299)  $(17,81(0)  $(13,249)

Accumulated other comprehensive income at Dece®be2007 and 2006 is $295,000 and $114,000. ltezk® unrealized gains on
marketable securities.
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8. Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effeEtemporary differences between the carrying am@ohassets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts useth€ome tax purposes. Significant componenthief@ompany’s deferred tax assets are as
follows:

December 31

2007 2006
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 37,17 $ 30,15(
Research and development tax credit carryforw 3,201 3,911
Capitalized researc 1,19¢ 1,42¢
Other 2,00¢ 62€

43,57( 36,11¢
Valuation allowanct (43,570 (36,119
Net deferred tax asse $ — $ —

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependemnt fygare earnings, if any, the timing and amounivbfch are uncertain. Accordingly, 1
net deferred tax assets have been fully offset\ml@ation allowance. The valuation allowance iased by $7.5 million, $7.9 million and
$4.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2@006 and 2005, respectively. As of December 3Q728angamo had net operating loss
carryforwards for federal income tax purposes gragimately $96.6 million, which expire in the ye&010 through 2027. The Company also
has state net operating loss carryforwards of aqmately $72.0 million, which expire in the yea®08 through 2017. The Company also has
federal and state research tax credit carryforwafd.9 million and $1.9 million, respectively. &fiederal research credits will begin to ex
in the year 2018 through 2027 and the state relseaedits have no expiration date. Utilization lé Company’s net operating loss may be
subject to substantial annual limitation due todtwmership change limitations provided by the In&iRevenue Code and similar state
provisions. The annual limitation could result e texpiration of the net operating loss before use.

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation A8counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxé6IN 48”), on January 1, 2007. As a resul
the implementation of FIN 48, the Company did retagnize any adjustment to the liability for unaarttax positions and therefore did not
record any adjustment to the beginning balancetaimed earnings on the consolidated balance sheef the date of adoption, the Company
recorded a $1.1 million reduction to deferred tazets and the associated valuation allowance fecognized tax benefits. If the unrecogni
tax benefits were recognized, there would be naithpn the effective tax rate.

We file U.S and state income tax returns with vagystatutes of limitations. The tax years from 1888ard remain open to examination
due to the carryover of use net operating lossésxocredits.

The following table summarizes the activity relatesbur unrecognized tax benefits:

Total

(In thousands)
Balance at January 1, 20 $1,140,00
Increases related to current year tax posit 160,00(
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 1,300,000
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9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006
Accounts payabl $1,55¢ $1,10¢
Accrued professional fet 234 28¢
Accrued research and collaboration expe 42C 35
Accrued clinical trial expens 1,044 79
Deferred ren 131 10C
Other 15 11F
Total accounts payable and accrued liabili $3,53¢ $1,72¢

10. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table sets forth certain unaudite@dderly financial data for the eight quarters enBedember 31, 2007. The unaudited
information set forth below has been prepared ersttme basis as the audited information and inslali@djustments necessary to present
fairly the information set forth herein. The opéngtresults for any quarter are not indicativeexfuits for any future period. All data is in
thousands except per common share data.

Fiscal Year 2007 Fiscal Year 200€
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Revenue: $1,42: $258 $2328 $2,767 $2,13¢ $1,777 $1,77¢ $ 2,19¢
Expense: $7,42¢ $8,42: $764¢ $10,37¢ $5,34¢ $584¢ $542; $11,9941)
Net loss $(5,35¢ $(5,181) $(4,26¢) $(6,679) $(2,74) $(3,327) $(2,845) $(8,949
Net loss per shai $ (0.15) $ (0.15) ¢ (0.1)) $ (0.17) $ (0.09 ¢ (0.11) $ (0.0 $ (0.29)

(1) Q4 2006 expenses include approximately $5.8 millesearch and development expense in connectidnawguisition of the Edwar’
ZFP Therapeutic angiogenesis progra
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ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedure
EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We have performed an evaluation under the supervisnd with the participation of our managemerduding our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer of the effiveness of our disclosure controls and procedaesdefined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as agt(ttie Exchange Act). Based on that evaluationpmnagement, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officegncluded that our disclosure controls and proesiurere effective as of December 31, 2007
to ensure that information required to be discldsgds in the reports filed or submitted by us urttie Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipe in the SEC’s rules and forms, and is accuwated and communicated to our
management, including our principal executive @ffiand principal financial officer, as appropritdellow timely decisions regarding
disclosure.

There are inherent limitations to the effectivenafsany system of disclosure controls and procesjuneluding cost limitations, the
possibility of human error, judgments and assunmgti@garding the likelihood of future events, amel ¢ircumvention or overriding of the
controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effectlisclosure controls and procedures can provitiereasonable assurance of achieving
their control objectives.

MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING
Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@orting, as such term is defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act.

Management has used the framework set forth ingpert entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framexpublished by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimissknown as COSO, to evaluate the effectivenétiseoCompany’s internal control
over financial reporting. Management has conclutieti our internal control over financial reportiwgs effective as of December 31, 2007.

Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered pubticounting firm, has audited the consolidatedrfaial statements included in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K and has issued an attestreport on the effectiveness of our interrmadtmls over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS

There has been no change in our internal contrads financial reporting during the fourth fiscalagter of 2007 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, our internal controls over financial reporting

Item 9B.  Other Information
Not applicable.
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PART IlI

Certain information required by Part Il is omittedm this Report on Form 10-K since we intendik® éur definitive Proxy Statement
for our next Annual Meeting of Stockholders, pursua Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange &ct934, as amended (the “2008 Proxy
Statement”), no later than April 29, 2008, and aiertnformation to be included in the Proxy Statetrie incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenae

The information required by this item concerning dinectors, executive officers, Section 16 comptaand code of ethics is
incorporated by reference to the information sethfon the sections titled “Election of DirectorsManagement,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Code of Ethinsour 2008 Proxy Statement.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item regarding @xtése compensation is incorporated by referendaeédnformation set forth in the
sections titled “Executive Compensation” in our 20®roxy Statement.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afnagement and Related Stockholder Matt:

The information required by this item regardingwséy ownership of certain beneficial owners anchagement is incorporated by
reference to the information set forth in the swctitled “Security Ownership of Certain Benefictalvners and Management” and “Equity
Compensation Plans” in our 2008 Proxy Statement.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions abitector Independenct

The information required by this item regardingtagr relationships and related transactions isrimo@ted by reference to the
information set forth in the section titled “CertdRelationships and Related Transactions” in o@82Proxy Statement.

Iltem 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Servick

The information required by this item regardingnpipal auditor fees and services is incorporatecefgrence to the information set forth
in the section titled “Principal Auditor Fees aneh8ces” in our 2008 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduls
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport:
1. Financial Statements—See Index to Consolidateahi€ial Statements in Item 8 of the report.
2. Financial Statement Schedules—None.
3. See Index to Exhibits.

(b) See the Index of Exhibits
(c) See the Financial Statements beginning on pags this Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredulp authorized, on February 29, 2008.

SANGAMO BIOSCIENCES, INC

By: /s/  EDbwARD O. L ANPHIER I

Edward O. Lanphier II
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bydtowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated:

Signature Title Date
/s/ EpwaRD O. L ANPHIER I President, Chief Executive Officer and February 29, 2008
Edward O. Lanphier I Director (Principal Executive Office
/s/  H.WARDW OLFF Executive Vice President and Chief Finan: February 29, 200
H. Ward Wolff Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
/s|  WiLLiam G. GERBER, M.D. Director February 29, 200

William G. Gerber, M.D.

/s JoHNW. L ARSON Director February 29, 2008

John W. Larson

/s|  MARGARETA. L iy, M.D. Director February 29, 2008
Margaret A. Liu, M.D.

/s/ STEVENJ. MENTO, PH.D Director February 29, 200
Steven J. Mento, Ph.D

/s/  MicHAEL C. W ooD Director February 29, 2008
Michael C. Wood
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Exhibit
Number

11

1.2

3.1

3.2

4.1
10.1t
10.2(+)
10.3(+)

10.4

10.5t

10.6t

10.7t

10.8(+)

10.9

10.10(+)

10.11(+)

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description of Document
Purchase Agreement, dated June 15, 2006, betwegai®a and Piper Jaffray & Co. (incorporated byrexiee tc
Exhibit 1.1 to the Compar's Form K filed in June 16, 200¢€

Agency Agreement between Sangamo and JMP SecuRisr Jaffray & Co., Leerink Swann & Company dadne)
Montgomery Scott LLC, dated July 16, 2007 (incogied by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Companysn8-K filed on
July 17, 2007)

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatinoofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @amny’s Registration
Statement on Form-1/A (Registration No. 33-30134) filed March 31, 2000

Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by referéo Exhibit 3.2 to the Compe’s Registration Statement
Form £-1/A (Registration No. 33-30134) filed March 31, 2000

Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incogped by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the Comy's Registratior
Statement on Form-1/A (Registration No. 3:-30134) filed March 31, 2000

1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by referendéxhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Registration Steat on Form S-1/A
(Registration No. 3:-30134) filed March 14, 200!

2000 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by refeegiocExhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registrationt&teent on Form S-
1/A (Registration No. 3:-30134) filed February 24, 200(

2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporataéfieyence to Exhibit 10.2 to the Comp’s Registration Statement
Form £-1/A (Registration No. 33-30134) filed February 24, 200(

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into bestw Sangamo and each of its directors and exeaifficers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to tr@pany’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (Reagfion No. 333-
30134) filed February 24, 200(

Sublicense Agreement, by and between Sangamo &andalo & Johnson, dated May 9, 1996 (incorporateckfgrence to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Compa’s Registration Statement on Fori-1/A (Registration No. 3:-30134) filed February 24, 200(

Patent License Agreement between Sangamo and Massts Institute of Technology dated May 9, 14B&orporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Regtgin Statement on Form S-1/A (Registration No.-38334) filed
March 14, 2000)

License Agreement between Sangamo and the Johrigriddpniversity dated July 16, 1998, as amendetb(jporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Amenaindo. 2 to the Registration Statement on Form/A{Registration
No. 33:-30134) filed March 14, 2000

Employment Agreement, between Sangamo and Edwaka@hier Il, dated June 1, 1997 (incorporateddignence tc
Exhibit 10.15 to the Compa’s Registration Statement on Fori-1/A (Registration No. 3:-30134) filed March 14, 2000

License Agreement by and between The Scripps Reséastitute and Sangamo, dated March 14, 200@(pwrated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Regtgin Statement on Form S-1/A (Registration No.-38334) filed
April 5, 2000).

Separation Agreement and Release between Sangah@ealinPabo, Ph.D., dated June 20, 2003 (incorpdiay reference
to Exhibit 10.22 to the Compa’s Annual Report on Form -K/A filed April 27, 2004).

Separation Agreement and Release between Sangahdaaet Nibel, dated August 13, 2003 (incorporateteference ti
Exhibit 10.23 to the Compa’s Annual Report on Form -K/A filed April 27, 2004).
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Exhibit

Number
10.12(+)
10.13(+)
10.14

10.15

10.16(+)

10.17

10.18%11

10.1911

10.20

10.2111

10.22

10.23%t

10.24

211

23.1
311

Description of Document

Separation Agreement and Release between SangahiReter Bluford, dated October 29, 2004 (incorpautdty referenc
to Exhibit 99.1 to the Compa’s Form K filed November 4, 2004

2004 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by refeegiocAppendix C of the Compa’s Definitive Proxy Statement ¢
Schedule 14A filed April 29, 2004

Triple Net Laboratory Lease, between Sangamo aimt Richmond R&D Associates Il, LLC, dated May 2397
(incorporated by reference to Sangi's Registration Statement on For-1 (Reg. No. 33-30314), as amende

First Amendment to Triple Net Laboratory Leasewsstn Sangamo and Point Richmond R&D Associatdd [T,, dated
March 12, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Samgainnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endext&nber 31,
2004).

Separation Agreement and Release between Sangahiara@asey Case, dated November 18, 2005 (incatpodby
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Comp’s Form K filed November 22, 2005

Placement Agency Agreement, dated November 10,,2006ng Sangamo, JMP Securities LLC, Piper Jair&o. and
Leerink Swann & Company (incorporated by referetocExhibit 1.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed omWmber 14,
2005).

Research and Commercial Option License AgreemateddOctober 5, 2005, between Sangamo and Dow Agno&es
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23he Compan’'s Annual Report on Form -K, filed March 16, 2006)

Research, Development and Commercialization Agreéneted October 24, 2006 between Sangamo andilriizabetes
Research Foundation International (incorporateceligrence to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s AnriReport on Form 10-
K, filed March 1, 2007)

Asset Purchase Agreement dated December 1, 2086detween Sangamo and Edwards Lifesciences liidorforated
by reference to the Compé’s Form K filed on December 28, 200

Research and License Agreement between Sanganm®earahtech, Inc., dated April 27, 2007 (incorpordtgdeference t
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Annual Report on Form -Q, filed August 9, 2007

Sales Agreement between Sangamo and Cantor Fitdgef@o., dated May 18, 2007 (incorporated by refere to Exhibi
10.1 to the Compar's Form K filed on May 18, 2007)

License Agreement between Sangamo and Sigma-Al@dchoration, dated July 10, 2007 (incorporateddfgrence to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Annual Report on Form -Q, filed November 1, 2007

Common Stock Purchase Agreement between Sangan®igmaAldrich Corporation, dated July 10, 2007 (incorgedhby
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form K filed on July 10, 2007’

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by refeeeo Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual Report-orm 10K, filed
March 27, 2003)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit

Number Description of Document
31.2 Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Office
32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1:

t  Confidential treatment has been granted for ceitdormation contained in this document pursuardriorder of the Securities a
Exchange Commission. Such information has beentenénd filed separately with the Securities andnange Commissiol

tt Confidential treatment has been requested foricarformation contained in this document. Sucloiniation has been omitted and fil
separately with the Securities and Exchange Conionis

(+) Indicates management contract or compensatorygslarrangemen
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrRbgistration Statements (Form S-8 No. 333-34198;&1642 and 33332823) and il
the Registration Statements (Form S-3 No. 333-123883-68066, 333-134516 and 333-142425) and ineladed prospectuses of Sangamo
BioSciences, Inc. of our reports dated Februar2P88, with respect to the consolidated finandiaiesnents of Sangamo BioSciences, Inc.,
and the effectiveness of internal control overfiitial reporting of Sangamo BioSciences, Inc., idelliin this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for
the year ended December 31, 2007.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
February 28, 2008



Exhibit 31.1
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATE

I, Edward O. Lanphier Il, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Sangamo BioSciences, Inc. (I“registran”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&-5(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affetbte registrans internal control ove
financial reporting; an

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the audit committee of the regi¢'s board of director:

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 29, 2008

/s/ EDWARD O. L ANPHIERII

Edward O. Lanphier Il
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATE

I, H. Ward Wolff, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Sangamo BioSciences, Inc. (I“registran”)

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affetbte registrans internal control ove
financial reporting; an

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the audit committee of the regi¢'s board of director:

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 29, 2008

/s/ H. WARD W OLFF

H. Ward Wolff
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



Exhibit 32.1
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as Adopt Pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 22

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies pursuah8tU.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 9@i€edbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, in
his capacity as an officer of Sangamo BioSciences,(the “Company”), that:

(1) the Annual Report of the Company on Form 1®Kthe year ended December 31, 2007, as filed tétSecurities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”), fully complies with theguirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&earExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/  EpbwaARD O. L ANPHIERII
Edward O. Lanphier Il
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

February 29, 2008

/s/ H. WARD W OLFF

H. Ward Wolff
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

February 29, 200



